

Faculteit Geneeskunde en Levenswetenschappen

kinesitherapie

Masterthesis

patients

Lore Petré **Bram Poelmans** de kinesitherapie

PROMOTOR : dr. Ilse LAMERS

UHASSELT KNOWLEDGE IN ACTION

www.uhasselt.be Universiteit Hasselt Campus Hasselt: Martelarenlaan 42 | 3500 Hasselt Campus Diepenbeek: Agoralaan Gebouw D | 3590 Diepenbeek

master in de revalidatiewetenschappen en de

The dosage dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological

Eerste deel van het scriptie ingediend tot het behalen van de graad van master in de revalidatiewetenschappen en

COPROMOTOR :

Prof. dr. Peter FEYS





Faculteit Geneeskunde en Levenswetenschappen

master in de revalidatiewetenschappen en de kinesitherapie

Masterthesis

The dosage dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients

Lore Petré

Bram Poelmans

Eerste deel van het scriptie ingediend tot het behalen van de graad van master in de revalidatiewetenschappen en de kinesitherapie

PROMOTOR :

dr. Ilse LAMERS

COPROMOTOR : Prof. dr. Peter FEYS

The dosage dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients

Research question:

- What are the dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients?

Findings:

- The dosage dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation have a lot more been researched in stroke patients (11 articles) than in other chronic neurological disorders (0 articles).
- A large heterogeneity in patient characteristics was found between and in the several intervention and control groups.
- A large heterogeneity in upper limb rehabilitation techniques, which were used as intervention, (Bobath concept, task-specific training, constraint induced movement therapy...) was found.
- Future research should investigate the dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in more homogeneous groups in more different chronic neurological disorders (Multiple Sclerosis, Parkinson's Disease,...).
- The dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute, subacute and chronic stroke patients are various whereby only small significant effects are obtained in favor of high dose interventions.

Petré Lore Poelmans Bram Promotor: dr. Lamers Ilse Co-promotor: Prof. dr. Feys Peter

CONTEXT OF THE MASTER THESIS

This master thesis is situated in a chronic neurological context. Neurologic disorders like cerebrovascular accident, multiple sclerosis, Parkinson's disease, ... are common diseases that affect the patient in his or her everyday life. The incidence of these diseases has increased over the last few decades. Neurologic disorders show a broad range of symptoms. These symptoms consist of problems of the upper and lower limb, cognitive disturbances, balance, vision, speech, activities of daily living, ... For neurological patients, it is often difficult to walk, to eat with cutlery, to come from sit to stand, leading generally to a lower quality of life.

The neurological problems due to chronic neurological disorders may have a large impact on the activities of daily living and quality of life. Therefore, rehabilitation can be an important aspect to minimalize these neurological problems.

Different rehabilitation strategies are used in clinical practice to improve the quality of life and decrease the impact of the symptoms. Examples of these different rehabilitation strategies are task-specific training, balance training, strength training, mobilization, ... The most important goals of rehabilitation are improving the patient independency and increasing their quality of life.

A lot of research has been done on therapy content, which has recently showed the importance of task-oriented rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients. However, little is known about the optimal therapy dose that has to be used for these patients. Due to this unknowingness, we want to examine in this review the dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological

In general, the idea of 'higher therapy dose gives better motor outcomes', is used. There are other studies hat demonstrate that patients who experienced a stroke did not benefit from high dose interventions early after the stroke. In different articles and rehabilitation centers a large variety in therapy doses is given.

The literature review in this thesis will focus on the effect of different doses of rehabilitation in chronic neurological disorders.

In the second year of the master degree, we will study the effect of CIMT with a dose-matched standard rehabilitation program. We want to investigate whether the task-specific approach of CIMT improves the upper limb capacity more than a standard rehabilitation program. This study will be performed under supervision of our promotor Dr. Lamers and co-promotor Prof. Dr. Feys. The study will be conducted in the rehabilitation center of Herk-de-Stad. Our supervisor in Herk-de-Stad is Marc Michielsen, head of paramedical services of the rehabilitation center in Herk-de-Stad.

The literature review and the master thesis part 2 protocol was written in accordance with the central format.

The general theme was proposed by our promotor and co-promotor. Based on the available literature the research question was formulated by two students (BP and LP). The literature study, articles

3

selection and quality assessment was done by two independent students. When there was doubt, our promotor was asked for feedback. The writing of the data-extraction, results, and discussion was divided between the two independent students.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 SYSTEMATIC REVIEW

1.	Abs	tract	7		
2.	Intro	oduction	7		
3.	Met	hods	9		
	3.1	Research question	9		
	3.2	Literature search	9		
	3.3	Selection criteria	10		
	3.4	Quality assessment	10		
	3.5	Data extraction	11		
4.	Res	ults	11		
	4.1	Results study selection	11		
	5.1	Reflection on the quality of the included studies	15		
	5.2	Reflection on the findings in function of the research questions	15		
	5.3	Reflection on the strengths and weaknesses of the literature study	18		
	5.4	Recommendations for further research	18		
7.	List	of references	19		
8.	8. Appendices part 1				

PART 2 RESEARCH PROTOCOL

1.	Introduction Master Thesis part 21		
2	2.2 Hypotheses2		
3.	Method3		
	3.1 Research design		
3.2 Participants			
3.2.1 Patient recruitment			
3.2.2 Inclusion criteria			
	3.2.3 Exclusion criteria3		
	3.3 Medical ethics4		
	3.4 Intervention4		
	3.4.1 Therapy content4		
	3.4.3 Training principles6		
	3.5 Outcome measurements7		
	3.5.1 Primary outcome7		
	3.5.2 Secondary outcome8		
	3.6 Data analyses8		
4.	Time planning9		
5.	Reference		

PART 1 SYSTEMATIC REVIEW

1. Abstract

Background: Different upper limb rehabilitation strategies have been investigated over time. But recently it became clear that not only the therapy content may influence outcome results, but also the therapy dose. The aim of this systematic review is to investigate the dose-dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients.

Methods: Web Of Science and PubMed were used to search for RCTs. Articles were included which consist of patients with chronic neurological diseases, comparing different doses of upper limb rehabilitation, and written in English or Dutch. Articles were excluded when using deep brain stimulation, medication therapy or botulinum toxin as an intervention. Equally excluded were those in which no dose comparison of upper limb rehabilitation was performed and when there was no RCT study design.

Results: Eleven articles were found which investigated the dose-dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in stroke patients. No articles of other chronic neurological disorders were found. Five articles found significant differences in favor of the high dose intervention group(s). Five articles concluded there were no significant between-group differences. One article found significant differences in disadvantage of the high dose intervention group.

Discussion and conclusion: The results of this review did not allow an unambiguous conclusion as to whether a higher dose of a rehabilitation strategy has more beneficial effects. Several explanations were found: The first one is the differences in baseline characteristics such as age, time post stroke, type of stroke, and gender. They may all have an influence. Thereby the different types and amounts of dose that are used may affect the results as well. Finally, the most influential factor may be the differences in the intervention strategies that are used (for rehabilitation).

Aim of the research protocol: To compare modified constraint induced movement therapy (mCimt) with a dose matched standard care program in subacute stroke patients.

Operationalization: A sample is randomized in two groups: one group receiving mCIMT and the other group dose matched standard care. Upper limb capacity measures will be taken before, after two weeks of training and one month post-intervention.

Key words: Stroke, upper limb, rehabilitation, dose-responsive, CIMT

2. Introduction

'Chronic neurological disorders' is a term that includes many disorders which may affect the central and peripheral nervous system, such as cerebrovascular accident or stroke, multiple sclerosis, cerebral palsy...

The World Health Organization states that stroke is the second most common cause of death worldwide [312]. Heuschmann et al. (2009) [301] estimated that the stroke incidence in Europe ranges

between 94.6 per 100,000 women and 141.3 per 100,000 males. Cerebral palsy on the other hand occurred in a mean of 2.11 per 1000 live births and multiple sclerosis has a prevalence of \leq 20/100,000 till \geq 200/100,000 men in Europe [328,329].

Stroke leads to death in 20% of the patients [304, 328] within the first three months, 80% of the patients survive. Of those who survive circa 40% till 80% suffer from hemiparesis six months after the stroke which has a large impact on their activities of daily living [326]. The percentage of cerebral palsy patients who suffer from hemiparesis was less than that of stroke patients and varied between 21% and 23% [329]. With people with MS a hemiparesis image is less common, however, a mean of 50 % of the MS patients suffer from impairments in the upper limb, which increase throughout the years [331,332].

The neurological disorders mentioned above may present with upper limb disability, caused by muscle weakness, loss of sensation, spasticity or coordination problems [300].

To minimize the impact of upper limb impairment and disability on the independency and quality of life in patients with a chronic neurological disorder, rehabilitation is needed. It is known that larger beneficial effects are obtained when the patient receives rehabilitation compared to patients who don't receive a rehabilitation program [306]. Throughout the years several upper limb rehabilitation strategies have been developed and investigated. The efficacy of rehabilitation strategies like the Bobath concept [307], task-oriented training [308], mirror therapy [309], robot-assisted therapy [310], constrained induced movement therapy [311], … have already been investigated. Not only the intervention content is important, also the dose of the intervention may have an influence on neural plasticity after brain damage, as mentioned in Kleim et al. (2008) [316].

In recent years, the influence of different doses of rehabilitation in motor outcomes has been studied more and more. [41,121,126,318,320,321]. Three concepts need to be clarified: dose, frequency and duration. They are described in the following ways. Dose is 'The total amount of activity performed during the training period' [187]. Frequency is 'the number of sessions per day or per week' [126]. The duration is described as 'the time period, in days or weeks, over which the intervention is delivered' [126]. A lot of research studies use different doses of rehabilitation in chronic neurological disorders. However, most recent dose-response research has been focused on stroke patients. The optimal dose, however, remains till present unclear according to a study conducted by Lang et al. (2016) [126].

In general researchers described that the mean therapeutic session time for stroke patients ranged from 24 to 64 minutes. However, of that therapy time a mean of 0.7-7.9 minutes were spent on upper limb training per session in acute stroke patients [314,315]. It is possible that the mean therapy time is too short to achieve functional improvements. [314]. Not only therapy time, but also the intensity of the training is important. Dejong et al. (2011) suggest that the speed of a movement can be an important factor for the intensity of the rehabilitation. A higher speed can lead to more repetitions, which can influence motor outcomes [47].

8

In general, it is stated that longer therapy time results in better motor outcomes [126,317,318,319].

This general statement is confirmed by large systematic reviews that found significant improvements on Barthel index (BI), Motricity Index (MI), knee extension and flexion torque and hand strength in acute, subacute and chronic patients. [41,121,321]. Peiris et al. (2011) [320] even found a significant reduction in time of hospitalization in favor of the high dose therapy in acute stroke patients.

These results are contrary with research that only focused on the influence of a high dose of upper limb rehabilitation. A higher dose of upper limb therapy had no significant improvement in the Action Research Arm Test (ARAT), Rivermead Mobility Assessment (RMA) Score and Brunnstrom Fugl-Meyer Fugl-Meyer assessment (BFMA) [40,121,320]. However, studies that focused on balance and lower limb rehabilitation found small till moderate significant improvements in favor of the high dose of therapy on functional outcomes measurements like the BI index, Motricity Index (MI) and walking speed. [40,121,321].

On the other hand, for the upper limb it is still unclear whether a higher dose of therapy leads to a better motor improvement compared with a low dose of therapy [121,320,321].

Therefore, this systematic review will give a survey of the current evidence for the use of a high dose of upper limb therapy. This systematic review aims to investigate the dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute, subacute and chronic neurological patients.

3. Methods

3.1 Research question

The aim of this systematic review is to answer the following research questions:

- What are the dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients?

3.2 Literature search

To answer the research questions, the databases PubMed and Web of science (WOS) were searched using the following four categories: (1) keywords which include chronic neurological diseases, (2) keywords which refer to the upper extremity, (3) keywords which describe rehabilitation dose, and (4) keywords which refer to physical rehabilitation.

These categories were combined using the boolean operator 'AND'. The keywords within the different categories were combined using the boolean operator 'OR'. The boolean operator 'NOT' was used to avoid medication therapy, electrical therapy and deep brain stimulation as a result. No restriction on publication date was used.

The following search strategy was conducted in **Pubmed**:

Stroke [Title/abstract] OR Cerebrovascular accident [MeSH Terms] OR Multiple sclerosis [MeSH Terms] OR cerebral palsy [MeSH Terms] AND Upper extremity [Title/abstract] OR upper limb [Title/abstract] OR arm [Title/abstract] AND Rehabilitation [Title/abstract] OR Physical therapy modalities [Title/abstract] OR Exercise therapy [Title/abstract] AND Dose [Title/abstract] OR Amount [Title/abstract] OR Treatment intensity [Title/abstract] NOT Deep brain stimulation [Title/abstract] OR Electro-stimulation [Title/abstract] OR Medication [Title/abstract] OR Drug [Title/abstract] Articles were filtered on level of evidence in which randomized controlled trials were selected.

The following research strategy was used in Web of Science:

TS=(Stroke OR cerebrovascular accident OR multiple sclerosis OR cerebral palsy) AND TS=(Rehabilitation OR physical therapy OR exercise therapy) AND TS=(Upper limb OR upper extremity OR arm) AND TS=(Dose OR intensity OR amount OR dose-response) AND TS=(RCT) NOT TS=(deep brain stimulation OR medication OR drug OR botulinum toxin OR protocol OR pilot)

In WOS the articles were filtered on level of evidence by using the term 'RCT' as a search topic. Besides that, the terms 'protocol' and 'pilot' were used as an exclusion topic.

3.3 Selection criteria

The articles were first screened on title and abstract by using the following inclusion criteria and exclusion criteria. If there was doubt, the full text was read.

Articles were included based on following criteria:

- 1) the inclusion of patients with chronic neurological diseases like multiple sclerosis, Parkinson's disease, cerebrovascular accident...
- 2) the comparison of different doses of upper limb rehabilitation;
- 3) the use of English or Dutch language.

Articles were excluded based on following criteria:

- 1) the use of any form of medication therapy, deep brain stimulation, electrical therapy or botulinum toxin as an intervention;
- 2) the lack of upper limb intervention;
- 3) no randomized controlled study design;
- 4) no description of the dose of upper limb rehabilitation.

3.4 Quality assessment

Two independent researchers conducted the quality assessment using the Cochrane checklist for RCT for the assessment [333]. The Cochrane checklist for RCT consists of ten items, which were assessed with '*yes - no - unclear*. Any form of disagreement was solved by discussion between the two students. A third researcher was consulted when there was a disagreement.

3.5 Data extraction

To answer our research questions, the following data were extracted from the included articles: (1) disease characteristics, (2) days after diagnosis, (3) patient characteristics, (4) type of intervention, (5) frequency and duration of the intervention and (6) rehabilitation dose ('The total amount of activity performed during the training period', as defined by Page et al. (2012) [187], and (7) upper limb outcome measures used to evaluate pre- and post-rehabilitation effects.

4 Results

4.1 Results study selection

In total 339 articles were found after executing the search strategy in PubMed and WOS. After removing 40 duplicates, a total of 299 articles remained in PubMed (135 articles) and WOS (164 articles). After screening the 299 articles a total of 11 articles met the inclusion criteria. Figure 1 shows an overview of the selection process.

4.2 Results quality assessment

In this systematic review, 11 articles were included. Table 6 gives a detailed overview of the scores on quality of the included articles. In general, the quality of the included articles was moderate. Two articles [25,192] met less than five criteria. These articles were considered as of low quality. Four out of eleven [86,102,128,215] articles had a score between seven and eight. These articles were considered as of high quality. The concealment of allocation was blinded in seven articles [86, 102, 103, 128, 156, 212, 215] and unclear in four articles [25, 53, 192, 246]. There was no blinding of the therapist or patients in any of the articles. On the other hand, all the articles had blinded assessors. Eight out of eleven articles had groups with comparable baseline characteristics [53, 86, 102, 128, 146, 212, 215, 246], the baseline characteristics of the other three articles were unclear [25, 103, 192]. Nine out of eleven researches executed a complete follow-up or sufficient proportion of all included patients, two articles hadn't a complete follow up available [25, 192]. Thereby it was unclear in those two articles if selective loss-to-follow-up could be ruled out. All the patients in the control group and the intervention group were treated the same, except for the dose of rehabilitation. One article mentioned that there was no selective publication of results [215], this was not the case for the other ten articles.

4.3 Results data-extraction

All the articles that were included in this systematic review involved stroke patients. Table 9 gives an overview of the study characteristics and outcome measures of the included articles.

11

Out of eleven articles, four included only acute stroke patients [25, 53, 212, 246], three included acutesubacute stroke patients [103, 146, 192], one included only subacute stroke patients [86], two included only chronic stroke patients [101, 128] and one included acute, subacute and chronic stroke patients [215].

Most the included studies dealt with patients with severe to mild upper limb disability. [25, 103, 146, 192, 212, 215, 246] Furthermore, most the articles used the ARAT to evaluate the interventional effects on upper limb capacity [53, 86, 103, 128, 146, 192, 212, 215]. For the interventions that were mentioned: two articles used robot-assisted therapy [25,102], one article used constraint induced movement therapy (CIMT) [53], two articles used task-specific interventions for the upper limb [128,215], one article used Mobilization and Tactile Stimulation (MTS) [103] and five articles used additional standard therapy directed at the upper limb [86,146,192,212,246]. The standard therapy consists of motor relearning strategies, principles of

Bobath therapy, training of functional activities, correct positioning of the affected arm, passive, activeassisted and active mobilization and strength training. [86,146,192,212,246]. Table 7 gives a detailed description of the interventions used in the included articles.

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute stroke patients

Burgar et al. (2003) [25] used robot-assisted upper limb therapy in the intervention group, the intervention group used a mirror image movement enabler (MIME) device. The MIME consisted of four modes. Three modes stimulated unilateral reaching tasks and one mode stimulated bimanual tasks training. Tasks evolved from a passive to a more active-assisted approach. Rodgers et al. (2003) and Sunderland et al. (1992) used additional standard therapy based on the principles of Bobath therapy [212,246] and Dromerick et al. (2009) [53] used CIMT.

The dose of upper limb therapy that was given in the intervention group varied between a mean of 51 minutes and a mean of 480 minutes each week. Patients received 5 days/week therapy over a period of 14 days up to six weeks. In the interventions of Dromerick et al. (2009) and Burgar et al. (2003) a physical therapist individualized the intensity of the exercises and made it progressively more difficult according to the level of recovery of the patient. Sunderland (1992) and Rodgers (2003) [212,246] did not mention how exercises were graded.

Tables 11 and 12 describe the different training parameters in the intervention and the control group for all the articles.

Not all the patients in Rodgers et al. (2003) [212] and Burgar et al. (2011) [25] tolerated the extra therapy. A total of 150 hours of therapy in Rodgers et al. (2003) [212] were not given due to illness or patients declining during the intervention period.

The additional therapy in Sunderland et al. (1992) [246] resulted in an increase of pain in the intervention group compared with the initial assessment. In contrast Dromerick et al. (2009) [53] and Rodgers et al. (2003) [212] found no group difference in pain scores.

Burgar et al. (2011) and Sunderland et al. (1992) [25,246] found a significant difference in favor of the high dose intervention group and the control group in motor recovery assessment, measured by the Functional Independence Measurement (FIM) and the Extended Motricity Index (EMI) posttreatment. Sunderland et al. (1992) [246] found a significant difference in the mild impaired group at six months assessment between the intervention group and the control group in the Motor Club Assessment (MCA), Nine-Hole Peg Test (NHPT) and the EMI in favor of the intervention group. The severe impaired group showed a trend towards a significant difference between groups. However, Dromerick et al. (2009 [53] found that the high intensity CIMT group had significant lower gain in total ARAT-score from baseline to day 90, compared with the control and low intensity CIMT. The high CIMT group had significant lower scores in the stroke impact scale (SIS) hand subscale compared with the low dose CIMT at 90 days.

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute - subacute stroke patients

Lincoln et al. (1999) and Parry et al. (1999) followed the principles of Bobath therapy [146,192], Han et al. (2011) used standard arm therapy [86] and Hunter et al. (2011) [103] used MTS therapy. MTS-therapy consists of tactile and proprioceptive stimulation executed by guided sensory exploration, massage, passive joint/soft-tissue mobilization techniques, active-assisted movement and active movements where possible.

The treatment time varied from 420 minutes per patient up to 1680 minutes per patient. The intervention period ranged from two weeks up to five weeks. The degree of exertion of the training in the intervention group was not analyzed in any of the articles. By using a subjective scale like a BORG-scale, the researchers could better have a subjective image of the intensity of the training. The training could now be very intense for one patient and too light for the other.

Half the patients in Parry et al. (1999) [192] and 20% and 14% of the patients in the QPT and APT group in Lincoln et al. (1999) [146] could not tolerate the additional therapy. Lincoln et al. (1999) and Hunter et al. (2011) [103,146] didn't find any significant difference in motor outcomes between the intervention groups. The groups with the highest doses of therapy in Hunter et al. (2011) [103] had the greatest increased median for the MI. These differences were, however, not statistically significant. Han et al. (2013) [86] found that the groups who received the highest dose of therapy had a significant higher improvement in BFM and ARAT for two up to six weeks after intervention. Parry et al. (1999) [192] also found significant motor improvement in favor of the high dose of therapy on the RMA and ARAT post intervention, three and six weeks later by the less severe patients. No significant between group different was found in any of the severe groups of patients.

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic stroke patients

Hsieh et al. (2012) [101] used the BI-Manu-Track which allows training of two movements patterns (forearm pronation-supination and wrist flexion-extension) using the following three modes: a passive

(mode 1), an active-passive (mode 2) and an active-active mode (mode 3). The therapy time in the high dose intervention group ranged from 90-105 min per week, spread over a period of four up to eight weeks. The intensity in the high dose intervention group in Hsieh et al. (2012) [101] was 600-800 repetitions for mode 1 and mode 2 and 150-200 repetitions for mode 3. The low dose intervention group only had half the repetitions of the high dose intervention group. Hsieh et al. (2012) reported that all the groups showed mild ratings for pain and fatigue. No between-group differences were reported. Hsieh et al. (2012) found significant improvements in favor of the high dose therapy interventions.

In Hsieh et al. (2012) the high intensive robot-assisted therapy (RT) group had significantly more gains in BFM total score than the low intensive RT group and the control group at midterm and posttreatment. A similar effect was found in the BFM distal score.

The high intensity RT group showed significant within-group improvements in the SIS-strength and SIS-activities of daily living. The low intensity group had only significant improvements in the SIS strength. The between-group differences were not significant for the SIS score in Hsieh et al. (2012) [101].

On the other hand, Lang et al. (2016) [128] found no significant differences between the high dose (300 repetitions/ session) and the low dose intervention (100 repetitions/session) groups. One group had an individualized maximum repetitions program, they continued until they met certain criteria. Lang et al. (2016) [128] found no significant difference in favor of the high intensity intervention group in the ARAT and SIS score.

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute - subacute - chronic stroke patients

The experimental group in Ross et al. (2009) [215] received an additional one-hour session of taskspecific motor training for the hand and included repetitive practice of tasks which were individualized to the functional goals of each patient five times a week over a six-week period. The control group received standard care and 10 minutes of hand therapy three times a week.

Ross et al. (2009) [215] found no significant improvement comparing the low and high dose group of therapies for the Summed Manual Muscle Test (SMMT) and the ARAT after a six-week intervention. Ross et al. (2009) [215] also found no significant effects in favor of the high dose of therapy in secondary outcome measures (Wolf motor function test (WMFT), Disability of Shoulder Arm and Hand Assessment (DSAHA) and the Canadian Occupational Performance Measure (COPM)). The intensity level of the training of the patients in the intervention group was not recorded.

5 Discussion

5.1 Reflection on the quality of the included studies

In general, the included articles were of moderate quality because of different reasons. First, blinding of the patients or therapist was not accomplished in any of the included articles as it is very difficult to blind patients and therapist in a rehabilitation context. Possibly the patients in the intervention group were more motivated to exercise, because they knew they were in the experimental group, and therefore trained harder than the patients in the control group. Secondly, in four articles [25,53,192,215] the person who randomized the patients was not blinded. The person who randomized could potentially have divided the patients not equal for certain baseline characteristics. This can cause a selection bias. Thirdly, in three articles [25,103,192] it was unclear whether the baseline characteristics of the patients were the same. If the baseline characteristics aren't the same, it is difficult to compare outcome results between the groups. Fourthly, seven out of eleven [25,86,103,146,192,215,246] mentioned they had small sample sizes. Small sample sizes reduce the statistical power of an article. The results of this systematic review have to be interpreted carefully because of these different reasons.

5.2 Reflection on the findings in function of the research questions

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute stroke patients

The dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute stroke patients are various. Burgar et al. (2011) and Sunderland et al. (1992) [25, 246] found significant differences on EMI and FIM-score in favor of the high dose intervention. Rodgers et al. (2003) [212] found no differences, and Dromerick et al. (2008) [53] found significant less improvement in disadvantage of the high dose CIMT-group. The results found in Burgar et al. (2011) and Sunderland et al. (1992) [25,246] are similar to results found in other systematic reviews like Kwakkel et al. (2004) and Galvin et al. (2008) [120,321]. The systematic review of Kwakkel et al. (2004) and Galvin et al. (2008) [120, 321] also found a significant increase in measurements for functional independence (BI and EADL) in acute, subacute and chronic patients. However, Kwakkel et al. (2004) and Galvin et al. (2008) [120, 321] included upper and lower limb exercises. Measurements of ADL function like the Barthel index, can increase without an improvement in the affected arm because patients learn to compensate with the unaffected arm. A possible explanation of the general limited improvements of the motor outcome measures in the high dose intervention groups, is the large variance in therapy time. The therapy time of upper limb therapy that was given in the intervention group varied between a mean of 51 minutes and 480 minutes each week.

A potential reason of the significant increase in FIM score in Burgar et al. (2011) [25] is the significant difference in age. The age of the high dose intervention group was significantly lower than the low dose-group and control group. Age has an important influence on neuroplasticity [321] due to the fact that older persons may make improvements less quickly.

On the other hand, the use of robotic technology in Burgar et al. (2011) [25] can be an external motivation. The patients in the intervention group have potentially trained harder because of the external motivation.

Dromerick et al. (2009) [53] had significant lower improvement in ARAT score in the high intensity group compared with the low intensity group. These results are contrary with systematic reviews like Langhorne et al. (1996) and Lohse et al. (2014) [317,318,] which suggest that more therapy leads to more motor improvement in the upper limb. It is possible that the dose in Dromerick et al. (2009) [53] in the high intensity group was too high early after stroke.

Lang et al (2015). [126], for example, found that a high dose of therapy early after stroke, can potentially delay the recovery process which may lead to less motor improvements [126].

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute - subacute stroke patients

The dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute - subacute stroke patients are relatively small. The article of Han et al. (2013) and Parry et al. (1999) [86, 192] found significant differences in ARAT and BFM scores in favor of the high dose intervention groups. In contrast, Hunter et al. (2011) and Lincoln et al. (1999) [103, 146] found no significant difference between patients receiving a high or a low dose of therapy.

Although Parry et al. (1999) and Lincoln et al. (1999) [146,192] used the same therapy duration and therapy content, they still have different results. A possible reason could be that Lincoln et al. (1999) [146] did not execute a subgroup analysis like Parry et al. (1999) [192] to correct for level of impairment.

Differences between the study results of Parry et al. (1999) and Lincoln et al. (1999) [146,192] mentioned above may also be due to different baseline characteristics of the study population. For example, it was unclear if the baseline characteristics in the article of Parry et al. [192] were the same between groups. It is possible that the article of Parry et al. [192] had a lower mean age than the article of Lincoln et al. [146] As seen previously, age can potentially have an important role in motor outcomes [322].

Han et al. (2012) and Parry et al. (1999) [86,192] found significant differences in ARAT and BFMscores in favor of the high dose intervention groups. The outcomes are contradictory with the results of other systematic reviews that found no significant differences in ARAT-scores [41,121,321]. The effects of the ARAT in individualized studies are possibly too low to find a general significant effect in a systematic review.

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic stroke patients

Lang et al. (2016) [128] did not find significant between-group differences in favor of the high dose intervention group but Hsieh et al. (2012) [101] did find such a difference.

The fact that the article of Hsieh et al. (2012) [101] found significant greater improvements after high dose rehabilitation on the BFM can possibly be explained by three underlying reasons. One possible reason can be the motivational influence of robot-assisted therapy causing an increase of collaboration and effort in stroke patients.

But not only the motivational effect of robot technology can be a determining factor, also the high reproducibility of repetitions can be. Both Hsieh et al. (2012) [101] and Lang et al. (2016) [128] use a high number of repetitions. The difference between the two articles is that one [101] had twice as many repetitions in comparison with the other [128].

A third possible reason is the mean age of the study participants which is nearly 10 years younger compared with the mean age in the study of Lang et al [128]. Research suggests that neuroplasticity decreases with age and thus may influence recovery after stroke [128].

The study of Lohse et al. (2014) which investigated the dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic stroke patients, found small significant upper limb motor effects in favor of a high dose intervention [317].

The reason why Lang et al. (2016) [128] found no significant between-group differences can be explained by several possible reasons. As mentioned previously, the mean age in these two articles is approximately 10 years higher. Besides that, there is a large heterogeneity within the groups, such as time post stroke. As discussed previously, it is possible that the time after stroke may have an influence on the motor results [126].

Dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute - subacute - chronic stroke

The dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in favor of high dose in acute – chronic stroke patients are uncertain.

Ross et al. (2009) [215] found no significant between-group differences neither in primary outcome measures (ARAT, SMMT) nor in secondary outcome measures (WMFT, DSAHA, COPM). A first possible explanation is the small sample size that is used. Thereby there is heterogeneity in time post stroke which may influence the outcome.

Furthermore, the small difference in dose between the control group and the intervention group can be a possible reason why the intervention group didn't have better outcomes than the control group. Besides the influence of the dose of therapy, the intervention itself can be a possible cause of the poor results. In this article, the intervention group received an additional session which only focused on the hand. A proper shoulder function is needed for a proper hand function. It is possible that specific focus on hand without shoulder training limited the rehabilitation.

Lastly, also the use of the ARAT and WMFT can be questioned because of the possible floor effects [215]. Twelve of the included patients attained 0 on the ARAT at the baseline measures and in the end of the trial. Although these patients could have made some progress in hand function during the intervention the ARAT isn't perhaps sensitive enough to measure this small evolution.

5.3 Reflection on the strengths and weaknesses of the literature study

A limitation of this systematic review is that the included articles are only based on two databases. Possibly, some articles were missed. However, this chance will be rather small because of the large number of articles in PubMed and web of science. Although chronic neurological diseases were entered as a key word in the search none of the included articles investigated the effects in other chronic neurological pathologies than stroke. The articles analyzed in this systematic review had a large heterogeneity in baseline characteristics of the patients and rehabilitation techniques. These variances impede a comparison between the different articles and making a general conclusion about specific techniques in a specific population. A major strength of the study was the inclusion of the results in severe and less severe patients which increases the generalisability of the results.

5.4 Recommendations for further research

Future research should focus more on specific subgroups of stroke patients. It is possible that time after stroke and severity of the impairment can influence motor recovery. Dividing the patients in different treatment groups according to these factors will lead to a higher clarification of the optimal effect of the therapeutic interventions.

Larger RCTs with high quality are needed. However, it is hard to blind patients or therapists in a rehabilitation context. Most articles compare a high dose intervention group with a dose matched control group. It is recommended to compare different doses of the same therapy with each other to find the optimal dose of therapy.

Only six articles [25, 101, 146, 192, 212, 246] measured pain or fatigue in the high dose intervention group. If more articles are going to compare different doses of rehabilitation it's recommended to measure fatigue or pain. Furthermore, it is important to obtain results of the long-time effects of the intervention. Only six out of eleven articles in this systematic review [25, 53, 101, 128, 146, 212] used a follow-up. It is important in the future that more articles use a follow-up period after the intervention. It is possible that the intervention time was too short to achieve significant improvements but the Intervention time can't be increased repeatedly because not all the patients can tolerate a large additional therapy time.

6 Conclusion

The dose dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in acute, subacute and chronic stroke patients are various whereby only small significant effects are obtained in favor of high dose interventions.

7 List of references

Included articles are marked with (*).

Excluded articles that were used as a reference for writing the master thesis are marked with (**). For all other excluded articles, see table 5.

1. Abdollahi, F., Case Lazarro, E. D., Listenberger, M., Kenyon, R. V., Kovic, M., Bogey, R. A., . . . Patton, J. L. (2014). Error augmentation enhancing arm recovery in individuals with chronic stroke: a randomized crossover design. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 28(2), 120-128. doi:10.1177/1545968313498649

Ackerley, S. J., Byblow, W. D., Barber, P. A., MacDonald, H., McIntyre-Robinson, A., & Stinear, C.
 M. (2016). Primed Physical Therapy Enhances Recovery of Upper Limb Function in Chronic Stroke
 Patients. *Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 30*(4), 339-348. doi:10.1177/1545968315595285

3. Albert, S., & Kesselring, J. (2012). Neurorehabilitation of stroke. Journal of Neurology, 259(5), 817-832. doi:10.1007/s00415-011-6247-y

4. Almhdawi, K. A., Mathiowetz, V. G., White, M., & delMas, R. C. (2016). Efficacy of Occupational Therapy Task-oriented Approach in Upper Extremity Post-stroke Rehabilitation. Occupational Therapy International, 23(4), 444-456. doi:10.1002/oti.1447

5. Alterman, A. I., Gariti, P., & Mulvaney, F. (2001). Short- and long-term smoking cessation for three levels of intensity of behavioral treatment. *Psychol Addict Behav, 15*(3), 261-264.

6. Anttila, H., Autti-Ramo, I., Suoranta, J., Makela, M., & Malmivaara, A.(2008). Effectiveness of physical therapy interventions for children with cerebral palsy: A systematic review. *Bmc Pediatrics, 8*. doi:10.1186/1471-2431-8-14

7. Arya, K. N., Verma, R., Garg, R. K., Sharma, V. P., Agarwal, M., & Aggarwal, G. G. (2012). Meaningful task-specific training (MTST) for stroke rehabilitation: a randomized controlled trial. *Top Stroke Rehabil*, *19*(3), 193-211. doi:10.1310/tsr1903-193

8. Azizi, M., Perdrix, L., Bobrie, G., Frank, M., Chatellier, G., Menard, J., & Plouin, P. F. (2014). Greater efficacy of aldosterone blockade and diuretic reinforcement vs. dual renin-angiotensin blockade for left ventricular mass regression in patients with resistant hypertension. J Hypertens, 32(10), 2038-2044; discussion 2044. doi:10.1097/hjh.00000000000280

9. Azoulay, C. (2004). Menopause in 2004: "hormone replacement therapy" is not what it used to be anymore. Revue De Medecine Interne, 25(11), 806-815. doi:10.1016/j.revmed.2004.07.003

10. Ballinger, C., Ashburn, A., Low, J., & Roderick, P. (1999). Unpacking the black box of therapy -- a pilot study to describe occupational therapy and physiotherapy interventions for people with stroke. *Clin Rehabil, 13*(4), 301-309.

11. Barakat, L. P., Alderfer, M. A., & Kazak, A. E. (2006). Posttraumatic growth in adolescent survivors of cancer and their mothers and fathers. J Pediatr Psychol, 31(4), 413-419. doi:10.1093/jpepsy/jsj058

12. Baumgaertner, A., Grewe, T., Ziegler, W., Floel, A., Springer, L., Martus, P., & Breitenstein, C. (2013). FCET2EC (From controlled experimental trial to = 2 everyday communication): How effective is intensive integrative therapy for stroke-induced chronic aphasia under routine clinical conditions? A study protocol for a randomized controlled trial. Trials, 14, 308. doi:10.1186/1745-6215-14-308

13. Birkenmeier, R. L., Prager, E. M., & Lang, C. E. (2010). Translating Animal Doses of Task-Specific Training to People With Chronic Stroke in 1-Hour Therapy Sessions: A Proof-of-Concept Study. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 24(7), 620-635. doi:10.1177/1545968310361957

14. Bleyenheuft, Y., Arnould, C., Brandao, M. B., Bleyenheuft, C., & Gordon, A. M. (2015). Hand and Arm Bimanual Intensive Therapy Including Lower Extremity (HABIT-ILE) in Children With Unilateral Spastic Cerebral Palsy: A Randomized Trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 29(7), 645-657. doi:10.1177/1545968314562109

15. Boake, C., Noser, E. A., Ro, T., Baraniuk, S., Gaber, M., Johnson, R., . . . Levin, H. S. (2007). Constraint-induced movement therapy during early stroke rehabilitation. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 21(1), 14-24. doi:10.1177/1545968306291858

16. Brandao, M. B., Ferre, C., Kuo, H. C., Rameckers, E. A. A., Bleyenheuft, Y., Hung, Y. C., . . . Gordon, A. M. (2014). Comparison of Structured Skill and Unstructured Practice During Intensive Bimanual Training in Children With Unilateral Spastic Cerebral Palsy. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 28(5), 452-461. doi:10.1177/1545968313516871

17. Brauer, S. G., Hayward, K. S., Carson, R. G., Cresswell, A. G., & Barker, R. N. (2013). The efficacy of SMART Arm training early after stroke for stroke survivors with severe upper limb disability: a protocol for a randomised controlled trial. *BMC Neurol, 13*, 71. doi:10.1186/1471-2377-13-7

Braun, S. M., Beurskens, A. J., Van Kroonenburgh, S. M., Demarteau, J., Schols, J. M., & Wade,
 T. (2007). Effects of mental practice embedded in daily therapy compared to therapy as usual in adult stroke patients in Dutch nursing homes: Design of a randomised controlled trial. Bmc Neurology,
 doi:10.1186/1471-2377-7-34

19. Breceda, E. Y., & Dromerick, A. W. (2013). Motor rehabilitation in stroke and traumatic brain injury: stimulating and intense. *Current Opinion in Neurology, 26*(6), 595-601. doi:10.1097/wco.00000000000024

20. Britton, E., Harris, N., & Turton, A. (2008). An exploratory randomized controlled trial of assisted practice for improving sit-to-stand in stroke patients in the hospital setting. *Clin Rehabil, 22*(5), 458-468. doi:10.1177/0269215507084644

21. Brodin, O., Rikner, G., Steinholtz, L., & Nou, E. (1990). Local failure in patients treated with radiotherapy and multidrug chemotherapy for small cell lung cancer. *Acta Oncol,* 29(6), 739-746

22. Brosseau, L., Wells, G. A., Finestone, H. M., Egan, M., Dubouloz, C. J., Graham, I., . . . Ottawa,
P. (2006). Ottawa Panel evidence-based clinical practice guidelines for post-stroke rehabilitation. *Top Stroke Rehabil*, *13*(2), 1-+. doi:10.1310/3tkx-7xec-2dtg-xqkh

23. Brunner, I., Skouen, J. S., Hofstad, H., Assmuss, J., Becker, F., Pallesen, H., . . . Verheyden, G. (2016). Is upper limb virtual reality training more intensive than conventional training for patients in the subacute phase after stroke? An analysis of treatment intensity and content. *BMC Neurol, 16*(1), 219. doi:10.1186/s12883-016-0740-y

24. Brunner, I., Skouen, J. S., Hofstad, H., Strand, L. I., Becker, F., Sanders, A. M., . . . Verheyden,
G. (2014). Virtual reality training for upper extremity in subacute stroke (VIRTUES): study protocol for
a randomized controlled multicenter trial. BMC Neurol, 14, 186. doi:10.1186/s12883-014-0186-z

(*) 25. Burgar, C. G., Lum, P. S., Scremin, A. M., Garber, S. L., Van der Loos, H. F., Kenney, D., & Shor, P. (2011). Robot-assisted upper-limb therapy in acute rehabilitation setting following stroke: Department of Veterans Affairs multisite clinical trial. J Rehabil Res Dev, 48(4), 445-458.

26. Byl, N., Pitsch, E. and Abrams, G. (2008). Functional Outcomes Can Vary by Dose: Learning-Based Sensorimotor Training for Patients Stable Poststroke. *Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair*, 22(5), pp.494-504.

27. Casadio, M., Tamagnone, I., Summa, S., & Sanguineti, V. (2013). Neuromotor recovery from stroke: computational models at central, functional, and muscle synergy level. Frontiers in Computational Neuroscience, 7. doi:10.3389/fncom.2013.00097

28. Chang, M. C., & Chun, M. H. (2015). Use of robots in rehabilitative treatment. Journal of the Korean Medical Association, 58(2), 141-146. doi:10.5124/jkma.2015.58.2.141

29. Chang, W. H., & Kim, Y. H. (2013). Robot-assisted Therapy in Stroke Rehabilitation. Journal of Stroke, 15(3), 174-181. doi:10.5853/jos.2013.15.3.174

30. Chatterjee, S., Hayner, K. A., Arumugam, N., Goyal, M., Midha, D., Arora, A., . . . Kumar, S. P. (2016). The California tri-pull taping method in the treatment of shoulder subluxation after stroke: A randomized clinical trial. North American Journal of Medical Sciences, 8(4), 175-182. doi:10.4103/1947-2714.179933

 Chen, C. L., Lin, K. C., Kang, L. J., Wu, C. Y., Chen, H. C., & Hsieh, Y. W. (2014). Potential Predictors of Functional Outcomes After Home-Based Constraint-Induced Therapy for Children With Cerebral Palsy. American Journal of Occupational Therapy, 68(2), 159-166. doi:10.5014/ajot.2014.009860 32. Chen, H. L., Lin, K. C., Liing, R. J., Wu, C. Y., & Chen, C. L. (2015). Kinematic measures of Armtrunk movements during unilateral and bilateral reaching predict clinically important change in perceived arm use in daily activities after intensive stroke rehabilitation. Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation, 12. doi:10.1186/s12984-015-0075-8

33. Chen, S., Wolf, S. L., Zhang, Q., Thompson, P. A., & Winstein, C. J. (2012). Minimal Detectable Change of the Actual Amount of Use Test and the Motor Activity Log: The EXCITE Trial. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 26(5), 507-514. doi:10.1177/1545968311425048

34. Chiu, H. C., & Ada, L. (2016). Constraint-induced movement therapy improves upper limb activity and participation in hemiplegic cerebral palsy: a systematic review. Journal of Physiotherapy, 62(3), 130-137. doi:10.1016/j.jphys.2016.05.013

35. Choroidal neovascularization in the Choroidal Neovascularization Prevention Trial. The Choroidal Neovascularization Prevention Trial Research Group. (1998). Ophthalmology, 105(8), 1364-1372.

36. Ciccone, A., Celani, M. G., Chiaramonte, R., Rossi, C., & Righetti, E. (2013). Continuous versus intermittent physiological monitoring for acute stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(5). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD008444.pub2

37. Connell, L. A., McMahon, N. E., Eng, J. J., & Watkins, C. L. (2014). PRESCRIBING UPPER LIMB EXERCISES AFTER STROKE: A SURVEY OF CURRENT UK THERAPY PRACTICE. Journal of Rehabilitation Medicine, 46(3), 212-218. doi:10.2340/16501977-1268

38. Connell, L. A., McMahon, N. E., Harris, J. E., Watkins, C. L., & Eng, J. J. (2014). A formative evaluation of the implementation of an upper limb stroke rehabilitation intervention in clinical practice: a qualitative interview study. Implementation Science, 9. doi:10.1186/s13012-014-0090-3

39. Connell, L. A., McMahon, N. E., Simpson, L. A., Watkins, C. L., & Eng, J. J. (2014). Investigating Measures of Intensity During a Structured Upper Limb Exercise Program in Stroke Rehabilitation: An Exploratory Study. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 95(12), 2410-2419. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2014.05.025

 Connell, L. A., McMahon, N. E., Tyson, S. F., Watkins, C. L., & Eng, J. J. (2016). Case Series of a Knowledge Translation Intervention to Increase Upper Limb Exercise in Stroke Rehabilitation.
 Physical Therapy, 96(12), 1930-1937. doi:10.2522/ptj.20150694

41. Cooke, E. V., Mares, K., Clark, A., Tallis, R. C., & Pomeroy, V. M. (2010). The effects of increased dose of exercise-based therapies to enhance motor recovery after stroke: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Bmc Medicine, 8. doi:10.1186/1741-7015-8-60

42. Coviello, D. M., Alterman, A. I., Rutherford, M. J., Cacciola, J. S., McKay, J. R., & Zanis, D. A. (2001). The effectiveness of two intensities of psychosocial treatment for cocaine dependence. Drug Alcohol Depend, 61(2), 145-154.

43. Crosby, R. D., Mitchell, J. E., Raymond, N., Specker, S., Nugent, S. M., & Pyle, R. L. (1993). Survival analysis of response to group psychotherapy in bulimia nervosa. Int J Eat Disord, 13(4), 359-368.

44. Dackis, C. A., Kampman, K. M., Lynch, K. G., Plebani, J. G., Pettinati, H. M., Sparkman, T., & O'Brien, C. P. (2012). A double-blind, placebo-controlled trial of modafinil for cocaine dependence. J Subst Abuse Treat, 43(3), 303-312. doi:10.1016/j.jsat.2011.12.014

45. Dahl, A. E., Askim, T., Stock, R., Langorgen, E., Lydersen, S., & Indredavik, B. (2008). Short- and long-term outcome of constraint-induced movement therapy after stroke: a randomized controlled feasibility trial. Clin Rehabil, 22(5), 436-447. doi:10.1177/0269215507084581

46. de Bode, S., Mathern, G. W., Bookheimer, S., & Dobkin, B. (2007). Locomotor training remodels fMRI sensorimotor cortical Activations in children after cerebral hemispherectomy. *Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 21*(6), 497-508. doi:10.1177/1545968307299523

47. DeJong, S. L., Schaefer, S. Y., & Lang, C. E. (2012). Need for Speed: Better Movement Quality During Faster Task Performance After Stroke. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 26(4), 362-373. doi:10.1177/1545968311425926

48. Dennis, K. C. (2012). Effects of robot-assisted therapy on stroke rehabilitation in upper limbs: Systematic review and meta-analysis of the literature. Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development, 49(4), VII-XV. doi:10.1682/jrrd.2010.10.0210

49. Dobkin. (2007). Confounders in rehabilitation trials of task-oriented training: Lessons from the designs of the EXCITE and SCILT multicenter trials (vol 21, pg 3, 2007). Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 21(2), 195-195. doi:10.1177/1545968307299633

50. Dobkin, B. H. (2009). Motor rehabilitation after stroke, traumatic brain, and spinal cord injury: common denominators within recent clinical trials. *Current Opinion in Neurology, 22*(6), 563-569. doi:10.1097/WCO.0b013e3283314b11

51. Donaldson, C., Tallis, R., Miller, S., Sunderland, A., Lemon, R., & Pomeroy, V. (2009). Effects of Conventional Physical Therapy and Functional Strength Training on Upper Limb Motor Recovery After Stroke: A Randomized Phase II Study. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 23(4), 389-397. doi:10.1177/1545968308326635

52. Dromerick, A. W., Lang, C. E., Birkenmeier, R., Hahn, M. G., Sahrmann, S. A., & Edwards, D. F. (2006). Relationships between upper-limb functional limitation and self-reported disability 3 months after stroke. J Rehabil Res Dev, 43(3), 401-408.

(*) 53. Dromerick, A. W., Lang, C. E., Birkenmeier, R. L., Wagner, J. M., Miller, J. P., Videen, T. O., . . . Edwards, D. F. (2009). Very Early Constraint-Induced Movement during Stroke Rehabilitation (VECTORS): A single-center RCT. Neurology, 73(3), 195-201. doi:10.1212/WNL.0b013e3181ab2b27 54. Edwards, G., & Taylor, C. (1994). A test of the matching hypothesis: alcohol dependence, intensity of treatment, and 12-month outcome. Addiction, 89(5), 553-561.

55. Einsiedel, H. G., von Stackelberg, A., Hartmann, R., Fengler, R., Schrappe, M., Janka-Schaub, G., . . . Henze, G. (2005). Long-term outcome in children with relapsed ALL by risk-stratified salvage therapy: results of trial acute lymphoblastic leukemia-relapse study of the Berlin-Frankfurt-Munster Group 87. J Clin Oncol, 23(31), 7942-7950. doi:10.1200/jco.2005.01.1031

56. Engert, A., Plutschow, A., Eich, H. T., Lohri, A., Dorken, B., Borchmann, P., . . . Diehl, V. (2010). Reduced treatment intensity in patients with early-stage Hodgkin's lymphoma. N Engl J Med, 363(7), 640-652. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1000067

57. English, C., Bernhardt, J., Crotty, M., Esterman, A., Segal, L., & Hillier, S. (2015). Circuit class therapy or seven-day week therapy for increasing rehabilitation intensity of therapy after stroke (CIRCIT): a randomized controlled trial. International Journal of Stroke, 10(4), 594-602. doi:10.1111/ijs.12470

58. English, C. K., Hillier, S. L., Stiller, K. R., & Warden-Flood, A. (2007). Circuit class therapy versus individual physiotherapy sessions during inpatient stroke rehabilitation: A controlled trial. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 88(8), 955-963. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2007.04.010

59. Fan, Y. T., Lin, K. C., Liu, H. L., Wu, C. Y., Wai, Y. Y., & Lee, T. H. (2016). Neural correlates of motor recovery after robot-assisted stroke rehabilitation: a case series study. Neurocase, 22(5), 416-425. doi:10.1080/13554794.2016.1215469

60. Farmer, S. E., Durairaj, V., Swain, I., & Pandyan, D. (2014). Assistive Technologies: Can They Contribute to Rehabilitation of the Upper Limb After Stroke? *Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 95*(5), 968-985. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2013.12.020

61. Faulhaber-Walter, R., Hafer, C., Jahr, N., Vahlbruch, J., Hoy, L., Haller, H., . . . Kielstein, J. T. (2009). The Hannover Dialysis Outcome study: comparison of standard versus intensified extended dialysis for treatment of patients with acute kidney injury in the intensive care unit. Nephrol Dial Transplant, 24(7), 2179-2186. doi:10.1093/ndt/gfp035

62. Fazekas, G., Tavaszi, I., & Toth, A. (2016). NEW OPPORTUNITIES IN NEURO-REHABILITATION: ROBOT MEDIATED THERAPY IN CONDITONS POST CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM IMPAIRMENTS. Ideggyogyaszati Szemle-Clinical Neuroscience, 69(5-6), 148-154. doi:10.18071/isz.69.0148

Ferguson, G. T., Flezar, M., Korn, S., Korducki, L., Gronke, L., Abrahams, R., & Buhl, R. (2015).
 Efficacy of Tiotropium + Olodaterol in Patients with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease by Initial Disease Severity and Treatment Intensity: A Post Hoc Analysis. Adv Ther, 32(6), 523-536.
 doi:10.1007/s12325-015-0218-0

64. Fey, M. E., Yoder, P. J., Warren, S. F., & Bredin-Oja, S. L. (2013). Is more better? Milieu communication teaching in toddlers with intellectual disabilities. J Speech Lang Hear Res, 56(2), 679-693. doi:10.1044/1092-4388(2012/12-0061)

65. Feys, H., De Weerdt, W., Verbeke, G., Steck, G. C., Capiau, C., Kiekens, C., . . . Cras, P. (2004).
Early and repetitive stimulation of the arm can substantially improve the long-term outcome after stroke: A 5-year follow-up study of a randomized trial. Stroke, 35(4), 924-929.
doi:10.1161/01.STR.0000121645.44752.f7

66. Fleming, M. K., Newham, D. J., Roberts-Lewis, S. F., & Sorinola, I. O. (2014). Self-perceived utilization of the paretic arm in chronic stroke requires high upper limb functional ability. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 95(5), 918-924. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2014.01.009

67. Fluet, G. G., Merians, A. S., Qiu, Q. Y., Rohafaza, M., VanWingerden, A. M., & Adamovich, S. V. (2015). Does training with traditionally presented and virtually simulated tasks elicit differing changes in object interaction kinematics in persons with upper extremity hemiparesis? Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation, 22(3), 176-184. doi:10.1179/1074935714z.000000008

68. Foley, N., Pereira, S., Salter, K., Meyer, M., McClure, J. A., & Teasell, R. (2012). Are Recommendations Regarding Inpatient Therapy Intensity Following Acute Stroke Really Evidence-Based? Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation, 19(2), 96-103. doi:10.1310/tsr1902-96

69. Foley, P., Levine, E., Askew, S., Puleo, E., Whiteley, J., Batch, B., . . . Bennett, G. (2012). Weight gain prevention among black women in the rural community health center setting: the Shape Program. BMC Public Health, 12, 305. doi:10.1186/1471-2458-12-305

70. Forrester, L. W., Wheaton, L. A., & Luft, A. R. (2008). Exercise-mediated locomotor recovery and lower-limb neuroplasticity after stroke. *J Rehabil Res Dev, 45*(2), 205-220. doi:10.1682/jrrd.2007.02.0034

71. Fraile, J. C., Perez-Turiel, J., Baeyens, E., Vinas, P., Alonso, R., Cuadrado, A., . . . Laurentiu, L.
(2016). E2Rebot: A robotic platform for upper limb rehabilitation in patients with neuromotor disability.
Advances in Mechanical Engineering, 8(8). doi:10.1177/1687814016659050

72. Franceschini, M., Ceravolo, M. G., Agosti, M., Cavallini, P., Bonassi, S., Dall'Armi, V., . . . Sale, P. (2012). Clinical Relevance of Action Observation in Upper-Limb Stroke Rehabilitation: A Possible Role in Recovery of Functional Dexterity. A Randomized Clinical Trial. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 26(5), 456-462. doi:10.1177/1545968311427406

73. French, B., Leathley, M., Sutton, C., McAdam, J., Thomas, L., Forster, A., . . . Watkins, C. (2008). A systematic review of repetitive functional task practice with modelling of resource use, costs and effectiveness. Health Technology Assessment, 12(30), 1-+.

74. French, B., Thomas, L. H., Leathley, M. J., Sutton, C. J., McAdam, J., Forster, A., . . . Watkins, C. L. (2007). Repetitive task training for improving functional ability after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(4). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD006073.pub2

75. Freyer, D. R., Devidas, M., La, M., Carroll, W. L., Gaynon, P. S., Hunger, S. P., & Seibel, N. L. (2011). Postrelapse survival in childhood acute lymphoblastic leukemia is independent of initial treatment intensity: a report from the Children's Oncology Group. Blood, 117(11), 3010-3015. doi:10.1182/blood-2010-07-294678

76. Fu, S., Theodoros, D. G., & Ward, E. C. (2015). Intensive versus traditional voice therapy for vocal nodules: perceptual, physiological, acoustic and aerodynamic changes. J Voice, 29(2), 260.e231-244. doi:10.1016/j.jvoice.2014.06.005

77. Gadner, H., Grois, N., Potschger, U., Minkov, M., Arico, M., Braier, J., . . . Ladisch, S. (2008). Improved outcome in multisystem Langerhans cell histiocytosis is associated with therapy intensification. Blood, 111(5), 2556-2562. doi:10.1182/blood-2007-08-106211

(**) 78. Galvin, R., Murphy, B., Cusack, T., & Stokes, E. (2008). The impact of increased duration of exercise therapy on functional recovery following stroke - What is the evidence? Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation, 15(4), 365-377. doi:10.1310/tsr1504-365

79. Gauthier, L. V., Taub, E., Perkins, C., Ortmann, M., Mark, V. W., & Uswatte, G. (2008). Remodeling the brain: plastic structural brain changes produced by different motor therapies after stroke. Stroke, 39(5), 1520-1525. doi:10.1161/strokeaha.107.502229

80. Giuffrida, J. P., Lerner, A., Steiner, R., & Daly, J. (2008). Upper-extremity stroke therapy task discrimination using motion sensors and electromyography. *leee Transactions on* Neural *Systems and Rehabilitation Engineering*, *16*(1), 82-90. doi:10.1109/tnsre.2007.914454

81. Globas, C., Lam, J. M., Zhang, W., Imanbayev, A., Hertler, B., Becker, C., . . . Luft, A. R. (2011). Mesencephalic corticospinal atrophy predicts baseline deficit but not response to unilateral or bilateral arm training in chronic stroke. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(1), 81-87. doi:10.1177/1545968310382001

Bodecke, E., Armstrong, E. A., Rai, T., Middleton, S., Ciccone, N., Whitworth, A., . . . Bernhardt,
 J. (2016). A randomized controlled trial of very early rehabilitation in speech after stroke. International Journal of Stroke, 11(5), 586-592. doi:10.1177/1747493016641116

83. Gracies, J. M., Bayle, N., Goldberg, S., & Simpson, D. M. (2014). Botulinum toxin type B in the spastic arm: a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled, preliminary study. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 95(7), 1303-1311. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2014.03.016

84. Green, D., & Wilson, P. H. (2012). Use of virtual reality in rehabilitation of movement in children with hemiplegia - A multiple case study evaluation. Disability and Rehabilitation, 34(7), 593-604. doi:10.3109/09638288.2011.613520

85. Hammer, A., & Lindmark, B. (2009). Is forced use of the paretic upper limb beneficial? A randomized pilot study during subacute post-stroke recovery. Clin Rehabil, 23(5), 424-433. doi:10.1177/0269215508101734

(*) 86. Han, C., Wang, Q., Meng, P. P., & Qi, M. Z. (2013). Effects of intensity of arm training on hemiplegic upper extremity motor recovery in stroke patients: a randomized controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation, 27(1), 75-81. doi:10.1177/0269215512447223

87. Harley, J. B., Pajak, T. F., McIntyre, O. R., Kochwa, S., Cooper, M. R., Coleman, M., & Cuttner, J. (1979). Improved survival of increased-risk myeloma patients on combined triple-alkylating-agent therapy: a study of the CALGB. *Blood, 54*(1), 13-22.

88. Harris, J. E., Eng, J. J., Miller, W. C., & Dawson, A. S. (2009). A self-administered Graded Repetitive Arm Supplementary Program (GRASP) improves arm function during inpatient stroke rehabilitation: a multi-site randomized controlled trial. Stroke, 40(6), 2123-2128. doi:10.1161/strokeaha.108.544585

89. Harris, J. E., Eng, J. J., Miller, W. C., & Dawson, A. S. (2010). The role of caregiver involvement in upper-limb treatment in individuals with subacute stroke. Phys Ther, 90(9), 1302-1310. doi:10.2522/ptj.20090349

Harvey, L. A., Ristev, D., Hossain, M. S., Hossain, M. A., Bowden, J. L., Boswell-Ruys, C. L., . . .
 Ben, M. (2011). Training unsupported sitting does not improve ability to sit in people with recently acquired paraplegia: a randomised trial. Journal of Physiotherapy, 57(2), 83-90.

91. Hatschek, T., Baldetorp, L., Carstensen, J., Hakansson, L., Moller, T., Nilsson, B., & Termander,
B. (1993). Continuous versus intermittent prednimustine treatment of non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. Med
Oncol Tumor Pharmacother, 10(4), 159-166.

92. Haworth, J., Young, C., & Thornton, E. (2009). The effects of an 'exercise and education' programme on exercise self-efficacy and levels of independent activity in adults with acquired neurological pathologies: an exploratory, randomized study. Clinical Rehabilitation, 23(4), 371-U372. doi:10.1177/0269215508101728

93. Hayner, K., Gibson, G., & Giles, G. M. (2010). Comparison of constraint-induced movement therapy and bilateral treatment of equal intensity in people with chronic upper-extremity dysfunction after cerebrovascular accident. *Am J Occup Ther,* 64(4), 528-539.

94. Hayward, K. S., Barker, R. N., Carson, R. G., & Brauer, S. G. (2014). The effect of altering a single component of a rehabilitation programme on the functional recovery of stroke patients: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Clinical Rehabilitation, 28(2), 107-117. doi:10.1177/0269215513497601

95. Hendriks, V., van der Schee, E., & Blanken, P. (2011). Treatment of adolescents with a cannabis use disorder: main findings of a randomized controlled trial comparing multidimensional family therapy

and cognitive behavioral therapy in The Netherlands. Drug Alcohol Depend, 119(1-2), 64-71. doi:10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2011.05.021

96. Herpertz-Dahlmann, B., Schwarte, R., Krei, M., Egberts, K., Warnke, A., Wewetzer, C., . . . Dempfle, A. (2014). Day-patient treatment after short inpatient care versus continued inpatient treatment in adolescents with anorexia nervosa (ANDI): a multicentre, randomised, open-label, non-inferiority trial. Lancet, 383(9924), 1222-1229. doi:10.1016/s0140-6736(13)62411-3

97. Hillier, S., English, C., Crotty, M., Segal, L., Bernhardt, J., & Esterman, A. (2011). Circuit class or seven-day therapy for increasing intensity of rehabilitation after stroke: protocol of the CIRCIT trial. Int J Stroke, 6(6), 560-565. doi:10.1111/j.1747-4949.2011.00686.x

98. Horne, M., Thomas, N., McCabe, C., Selles, R., Vail, A., Tyrrell, P., & Tyson, S. (2015). Patientdirected therapy during in-patient stroke rehabilitation: stroke survivors' views of feasibility and acceptability. Disability and Rehabilitation, 37(25), 2344-2349. doi:10.3109/09638288.2015.1024341

 Housman, S. J., Scott, K. M., & Reinkensmeyer, D. J. (2009). A Randomized Controlled Trial of Gravity-Supported, Computer-Enhanced Arm Exercise for Individuals With Severe Hemiparesis. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 23(5), 505-514. doi:10.1177/1545968308331148

100. Hsieh, Y. W., Wu, C. Y., Liao, W. W., Lin, K. C., Wu, K. Y., & Lee, C. Y. (2011). Effects of treatment intensity in upper limb robot-assisted therapy for chronic stroke: a pilot randomized controlled trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(6), 503-511. doi:10.1177/1545968310394871

(*) 101. Hsieh, Y. W., Wu, C. Y., Lin, K. C., Yao, G., Wu, K. Y., & Chang, Y. J. (2012). Dose-response relationship of robot-assisted stroke motor rehabilitation: the impact of initial motor status. Stroke, 43(10), 2729-2734. doi:10.1161/strokeaha.112.658807

102. Hsu, S. S., Hu, M. H., Wang, Y. H., Yip, P. K., Chiu, J. W., & Hsieh, C. L. (2010). Dose-response relation between neuromuscular electrical stimulation and upper-extremity function in patients with stroke. Stroke, 41(4), 821-824. doi:10.1161/strokeaha.109.574160

(*) 103. Hunter, S. M., Hammett, L., Ball, S., Smith, N., Anderson, C., Clark, A., . . . Pomeroy, V. M. (2011). Dose-response study of mobilisation and tactile stimulation therapy for the upper extremity early after stroke: a phase I trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(4), 314-322. doi:10.1177/1545968310390223

104. Hunter, S. M., Crome, P., Sim, J., & Pomeroy, V. M. (2008). Effects of Mobilization and Tactile Stimulation on Recovery of the Hemiplegic Upper Limb: A Series of Replicated Single-System Studies. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 89(10), 2003-2010. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2008.03.016

105. Huseyinsinoglu, B. E., Ozdincler, A. R., & Krespi, Y. (2012). Bobath Concept versus constraintinduced movement therapy to improve arm functional recovery in stroke patients: a randomized controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation, 26(8), 705-715. doi:10.1177/0269215511431903 106. Hwang, C. H., Seong, J. W., & Son, D. S. (2012). Individual finger synchronized robot-assisted hand rehabilitation in subacute to chronic stroke: a prospective randomized clinical trial of efficacy. Clin Rehabil, 26(8), 696-704. doi:10.1177/0269215511431473

107. Imms, C., Wallen, M., & Laver, K. (2015). Robot assisted upper limb therapy combined with upper limb rehabilitation was at least as effective on a range of outcomes, and cost less to deliver, as an equal dose of upper limb rehabilitation alone for people with stroke. Aust Occup Ther J, 62(1), 74-76. doi:10.1111/1440-1630.12188

108. In, T. S., Jung, K. S., Lee, S. W., & Song, C. H. (2012). Virtual Reality Reflection Therapy Improves Motor Recovery and Motor Function in the Upper Extremities of People with Chronic Stroke. Journal of Physical Therapy Science, 24(4), 339-343.

109. Iruthayarajah, J., McIntyre, A., Cotoi, A., Macaluso, S., & Teasell, R. (2017). The use of virtual reality for balance among individuals with chronic stroke: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Top Stroke Rehabil*, *24*(1), 68-79. doi:10.1080/10749357.2016.1192361

110. Ishida, A., Tamakoshi, K., Hamakawa, M., Shimada, H., Nakashima, H., Masuda, T., . . . Ishida, K. (2011). Early onset of forced impaired forelimb use causes recovery of forelimb skilled motor function but no effect on gross sensory-motor function after capsular hemorrhage in rats. *Behavioural Brain Research*, *225*(1), 126-134. doi:10.1016/j.bbr.2011.06.036

111. James, S., Ziviani, J., Ware, R. S., & Boyd, R. N. (2015). Randomized controlled trial of webbased multimodal therapy for unilateral cerebral palsy to improve occupational performance. Developmental Medicine and Child Neurology, 57(6), 530-538. doi:10.1111/dmcn.12705

112. Kaji, R., Osako, Y., Suyama, K., Maeda, T., Uechi, Y., & Iwasaki, M. (2010). Botulinum toxin type A in post-stroke upper limb spasticity. Curr Med Res Opin, 26(8), 1983-1992. doi:10.1185/03007995.2010.497103

113. Katz, K. S., Rodan, M., Milligan, R., Tan, S., Courtney, L., Gantz, M., . . . Subramanian, S. (2011). Efficacy of a randomized cell phone-based counseling intervention in postponing subsequent pregnancy among teen mothers. Matern Child Health J, 15 Suppl 1, S42-53. doi:10.1007/s10995-011-0860-3

114. Kitago, T., Goldsmith, J., Harran, M., Kane, L., Berard, J., Huang, S., . . . Huang, V. S. (2015). Robotic therapy for chronic stroke: general recovery of impairment or improved task-specific skill? Journal of Neurophysiology, 114(3), 1885-1894. doi:10.1152/jn.00336.2015

115. Knols, R. H., Vanderhenst, T., Verra, M. L., & de Bruin, E. D. (2016). Exergames for Patients in Acute Care Settings: Systematic Review of the Reporting of Methodological Quality, FITT Components, and Program Intervention Details. Games for Health Journal, 5(3), 224-235. doi:10.1089/g4h.2015.0067

116. Krawczyk, M., Sidaway, M., Radwanska, A., Zaborska, J., Ujma, R., & Czlonkowska, A. (2012). Effects of sling and voluntary constraint during constraint-induced movement therapy for the arm after stroke: a randomized, prospective, single-centre, blinded observer rated study. Clinical Rehabilitation, 26(11), 990-998. doi:10.1177/0269215512442661

117. Kurtz, M. M., Seltzer, J. C., Fujimoto, M., Shagan, D. S., & Wexler, B. E. (2009). Predictors of change in life skills in schizophrenia after cognitive remediation. Schizophr Res, 107(2-3), 267-274. doi:10.1016/j.schres.2008.10.014

118. Kwakkel, G. (2006). Impact of intensity of practice after stroke: Issues for consideration. Disability and Rehabilitation, 28(13-14), 823-830. doi:10.1080/09638280500534861

119. Kwakkel, G., Kollen, B. J., & Wagenaar, R. C. (2002). Long term effects of intensity of upper and lower limb training after stroke: a randomised trial. Journal of Neurology Neurosurgery and Psychiatry, 72(4), 473-479.

120. Kwakkel, G., van Wegen, E. E., & Meskers, C. M. (2015). Invited Commentary on Comparison of Robotics, Functional Electrical Stimulation, and Motor Learning Methods for Treatment of Persistent Upper Extremity Dysfunction After Stroke: A Randomized Controlled Trial. *Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 96*(6), 991-993. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2015.02.00

121. Kwakkel, G., van Peppen, R., Wagenaar, R. C., Dauphinee, S. W., Richards, C., Ashburn, A., . . .
Langhorne, P. (2004). Effects of augmented exercise therapy time after stroke - A meta-analysis.
Stroke, 35(11), 2529-2536. doi:10.1161/01.STR.0000143153.76460.7d

122. Kwakkel, G., Veerbeek, J. M., van Wegen, E. E. H., & Wolf, S. L. (2015). Constraint-induced movement therapy after stroke. Lancet Neurology, 14(2), 224-234

123. Kwakkel, G., Wagenaar, R. C., Twisk, J. W. R., Lankhorst, G. J., & Koetsier, J. C. (1999). Intensity of leg and arm training after primary middle-cerebral-artery stroke: a randomised trial. Lancet, 354(9174), 191-196. doi:10.1016/s0140-6736(98)09477-x

124. Kwon, J. S., Park, M. J., Yoon, I. J., & Park, S. H. (2012). Effects of virtual reality on upper extremity function and activities of daily living performance in acute stroke: A double-blind randomized clinical trial. Neurorehabilitation, 31(4), 379-385. doi:10.3233/nre-2012-00807

125. Lang, C. E., Wagner, J. M., Edwards, D. F., & Dromerick, A. W. (2007). Upper extremity use in people with hemiparesis in the first few weeks after stroke. J Neurol Phys Ther, 31(2), 56-63. doi:10.1097/NPT.0b013e31806748bd

126. Lang, C. E., Lohse, K. R., & Birkenmeier, R. L. (2015). Dose and timing in neurorehabilitation: prescribing motor therapy after stroke. Current Opinion in Neurology, 28(6), 549-555. doi:10.1097/wco.000000000000256

127. Lang, C. E., MacDonald, J. R., Reisman, D. S., Boyd, L., Kimberley, T. J., Schindler-Ivens, S. M., . . . Scheets, P. L. (2009). Observation of Amounts of Movement Practice Provided During Stroke Rehabilitation. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 90(10), 1692-1698. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2009.04.005

(*) 128. Lang, C. E., Strube, M. J., Bland, M. D., Waddell, K. J., Cherry-Allen, K. M., Nudo, R. J., . . . Birkenmeier, R. L. (2016). Dose response of task-specific upper limb training in people at least 6 months poststroke: A phase II, single-blind, randomized, controlled trial. Annals of Neurology, 80(3), 342-354. doi:10.1002/ana.24734

129. Lang, K. C., Thompson, P. A., & Wolf, S. L. (2013). The EXCITE Trial: Reacquiring Upper-Extremity Task Performance With Early Versus Late Delivery of Constraint Therapy. *Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 27*(7), 654-663. doi:10.1177/1545968313481281

130. Langhorne, P., Coupar, F., & Pollock, A. (2009). Motor recovery after stroke: a systematic review. *Lancet Neurology*, *8*(8), 741-754.

131. Laver, K. E., George, S., Thomas, S., Deutsch, J. E., & Crotty, M. (2011). Virtual reality for stroke rehabilitation. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(9). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD008349.pub2

132. Laver, K. E., George, S., Thomas, S., Deutsch, J. E., & Crotty, M. (2015). Virtual reality for stroke rehabilitation. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(2). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD008349.pub3

133. Le, T. K., Chang, M., Nelson, C., Sortais, J. A., Chand, P., & Tallman, K. (2015). Upstream discussion provided in the ambulatory setting to assist patients with chronic kidney disease considering dialysis. Perm J, 19(1), 30-33. doi:10.7812/tpp/14-053

134. Lee, H. S., & Kim, J. U. (2013). The Effect of Self-directed Exercise Using a Task Board on Pain and Function in the Upper Extremities of Stroke Patients. Journal of Physical Therapy Science, 25(8), 963-967.

135. Lee, M. M., Cho, H. Y., & Song, C. H. (2012). The Mirror Therapy Program Enhances Upper-Limb Motor Recovery and Motor Function in Acute Stroke Patients. American Journal of Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation, 91(8), 689-696. doi:10.1097/PHM.0b013e31824fa86d

136. Lemmens, R. J. M., Timmermans, A. A. A., Janssen-Potten, Y. J. M., Pulles, S., Geers, R. P. J., Bakx, W. G. M., . . . Seelen, H. A. M. (2014). Accelerometry Measuring the Outcome of Robot-Supported Upper Limb Training in Chronic Stroke: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Plos One, 9(5). doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0096414

137. Lennard, L., Cartwright, C. S., Wade, R., & Vora, A. (2015). Thiopurine methyltransferase and treatment outcome in the UK acute lymphoblastic leukaemia trial ALL2003. Br J Haematol, 170(4), 550-558. doi:10.1111/bjh.13469

138. Leon, M. B., Kornowski, R., Downey, W. E., Weisz, G., Baim, D. S., Bonow, R. O., . . . Kuntz, R.
E. (2005). A blinded, randomized, placebo-controlled trial of percutaneous laser myocardial revascularization to improve angina symptoms in patients with severe coronary disease. Journal of the American College of Cardiology, 46(10), 1812-1819. doi:10.1016/j.jacc.2005.06.079

139. Li, K. Y., Lin, K. C., Wang, T. N., Wu, C. Y., Huang, Y. H., & Ouyang, P. (2012). Ability of three motor measures to predict functional outcomes reported by stroke patients after rehabilitation. Neurorehabilitation, 30(4), 267-275. doi:10.3233/nre-2012-0755

140. Liao, W. W., Wu, C. Y., Hsieh, Y. W., Lin, K. C., & Chang, W. Y. (2012). Effects of robot-assisted upper limb rehabilitation on daily function and real-world arm activity in patients with chronic stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Clin Rehabil, 26(2), 111-120. doi:10.1177/0269215511416383

141. Lima, R. C., Michaelsen, S. M., Nascimento, L. R., Polese, J. C., Pereira, N. D., & Teixeira-Salmela, L. F. (2014). Addition of trunk restraint to home-based modified constraint-induced movement therapy does not bring additional benefits in chronic stroke individuals with mild and moderate upper limb impairments: A pilot randomized controlled trial. NeuroRehabilitation, 35(3), 391-404. doi:10.3233/nre-141130

142. Lima, R. C. M., Nascimento, L. R., Michaelsen, S. M., Polese, J. C., Pereira, N. D., & Teixeira-Salmela, L. F. (2014). Influences of hand dominance on the maintenance of benefits after home-based modified constraint-induced movement therapy in individuals with stroke. Brazilian Journal of Physical Therapy, 18(5), 435-444. doi:10.1590/bjpt-rbf.2014.0050

143. Lin, K. C., Wu, C. Y., & Liu, J. S. (2008). A randomized controlled trial of constraint-induced movement therapy after stroke. Acta Neurochir Suppl, 101, 61-64.

144. Lin, K. C., Wu, C. Y., Liu, J. S., Chen, Y. T., & Hsu, C. J. (2009). Constraint-induced therapy versus dose-matched control intervention to improve motor ability, basic/extended daily functions, and quality of life in stroke. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 23(2), 160-165. doi:10.1177/1545968308320642

145. Lin, K. C., Wang, T. N., Wu, C. Y., Chen, C. L., Chang, K. C., Lin, Y. C., & Chen, Y. J. (2011). Effects of home-based constraint-induced therapy versus dose-matched control intervention on functional outcomes and caregiver well-being in children with cerebral palsy. *Research in Developmental Disabilities*, 32(5), 1483-1491. doi:10.1016/j.ridd.2011.01.023

(*) 146. Lincoln, N. B., Parry, R. H., & Vass, C. D. (1999). Randomized, controlled trial to evaluate increased intensity of physiotherapy treatment of arm function after stroke. Stroke, 30(3), 573-579.

147. Linder, S. M., Rosenfeldt, A. B., Reiss, A., Buchanan, S., Sahu, K., Bay, C. R., . . . Alberts, J. L. (2013). The home stroke rehabilitation and monitoring system trial: a randomized controlled trial. International Journal of Stroke, 8(1), 46-53. doi:10.1111/j.1747-4949.2012.00971.x

148. Lindgren, I., Lexell, J., Jonsson, A. C., & Brogardh, C. (2012). Left-Sided Hemiparesis, Pain Frequency, and Decreased Passive Shoulder Range of Abduction Are Predictors of Long-Lasting Poststroke Shoulder Pain. *Pm&R*, *4*(8), 561-568. doi:10.1016/j.pmrj.2012.04.007

149. Lohse, K. R., Schaefer, S. Y., Raikes, A. C., Boyd, L. A., & Lang, C. E. (2016). Asking New Questions with Old Data: The Centralized Open-Access Rehabilitation Database for Stroke. *Frontiers in Neurology*, 7. doi:10.3389/fneur.2016.00153

150. Long, M. J., & Marshall, B. S. (2000). The relationship of impending death and age category to treatment intensity in the elderly. J Eval Clin Pract, 6(1), 63-70

151. Luft, A. R., McCombe-Waller, S., Whitall, J., Forrester, L. W., Macko, R., Sorkin, J. D., . . . Hanley, D. F. (2004). Repetitive bilateral arm training and motor cortex activation in chronic stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Jama, 292(15), 1853-1861. doi:10.1001/jama.292.15.1853

152. Lum, P. S., Burgar, C. G., Van der Loos, M., Shor, P. C., Majmundar, M., & Yap, R. (2006). MIME robotic device for upper-limb neurorehabilitation in subacute stroke subjects: A follow-up study. Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development, 43(5), 631-642. doi:10.1682/jrrd.2005.02.0044

153. Lum, P. S., Burgar, C. G., Van der Loos, M., Shor, P. C., Majmundar, M., Yap, R., & leee. (2005). The MIME robotic system for upper-limb neuro-rehabilitation: results from a clinical trial in subacute stroke 2005 leee 9th International Conference on Rehabilitation Robotics (pp. 511-514).

154. Lysaker, P. H., Davis, L. W., Bryson, G. J., & Bell, M. D. (2009). Effects of cognitive behavioral therapy on work outcomes in vocational rehabilitation for participants with schizophrenia spectrum disorders. Schizophr Res, 107(2-3), 186-191. doi:10.1016/j.schres.2008.10.018

155. Mancia, G., Facchetti, R., Parati, G., & Zanchetti, A. (2014). Effect of long-term antihypertensive treatment on white-coat hypertension. Hypertension, 64(6), 1388-1398. doi:10.1161/hypertensionaha.114.04278

156. Marchal-Crespo, L., & Reinkensmeyer, D. J. (2009). Review of control strategies for robotic movement training after neurologic injury. Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation, 6. doi:10.1186/1743-0003-6-20

157. Masiero, S., Armani, M., Ferlini, G., Rosati, G., & Rossi, A. (2014). Randomized trial of a robotic assistive device for the upper extremity during early inpatient stroke rehabilitation. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 28(4), 377-386. doi:10.1177/1545968313513073

158. Masiero, S., Celia, A., Rosati, G., & Armani, M. (2007). Robotic-assisted rehabilitation of the upper limb after acute stroke. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 88(2), 142-149. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2006.10.032

159. Masmiquel, L., Leiter, L. A., Vidal, J., Bain, S., Petrie, J., Franek, E., . . . Eriksson, M. (2016). LEADER 5: prevalence and cardiometabolic impact of obesity in cardiovascular high-risk patients with
type 2 diabetes mellitus: baseline global data from the LEADER trial. Cardiovasc Diabetol, 15, 29. doi:10.1186/s12933-016-0341-5

160. Massie, C., Malcolm, M. P., Greene, D., & Thaut, M. (2009). The effects of constraint-induced therapy on kinematic outcomes and compensatory movement patterns: an exploratory study. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 90(4), 571-579. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2008.09.574

161. McCombe Waller, S., Liu, W., & Whitall, J. (2008). Temporal and spatial control following bilateral versus unilateral training. Hum Mov Sci, 27(5), 749-758. doi:10.1016/j.humov.2008.03.006

162. McIntyre, A., Viana, R., Janzen, S., Mehta, S., Pereira, S., & Teasell, R. (2012). Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis of Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy in the Hemiparetic Upper Extremity More Than Six Months Post Stroke. Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation, 19(6), 499-513. doi:10.1310/tsr1906-499

163. McNulty, P. A., Thompson-Butel, A. G., Faux, S. G., Lin, G., Katrak, P. H., Harris, L. R., & Shiner, C. T. (2015). The efficacy of Wii-based Movement Therapy for upper limb rehabilitation in the chronic poststroke period: a randomized controlled trial. Int J Stroke, 10(8), 1253-1260. doi:10.1111/ijs.12594

164. Mehrholz, J., Hadrich, A., Platz, T., Kugler, J., & Pohl, M. (2012a). Electromechanical and Robot-Assisted Arm Training After Stroke Updated Review. Stroke, 43(12), E172-+. doi:10.1161/strokeaha.112.674226

165. Mehrholz, J., Hadrich, A., Platz, T., Kugler, J., & Pohl, M. (2012b). Electromechanical and robotassisted arm training for improving generic activities of daily living, arm function, and arm muscle strength after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(6). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD006876.pub3

166. Mehrholz, J., Platz, T., Kugler, J., & Pohl, M. (2008). Electromechanical and robot-assisted arm training for improving arm function and activities of daily living after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(4). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD006876.pub2

167. Meythaler, J. M., Guin-Renfroe, S., & Hadley, M. N. (1999). Continuously infused intrathecal baclofen for spastic/dystonic hemiplegia: a preliminary report. Am J Phys Med Rehabil, 78(3), 247-254.

168. Meythaler, J. M., Vogtle, L., & Brunner, R. C. (2009). A preliminary assessment of the benefits of the addition of botulinum toxin a to a conventional therapy program on the function of people with longstanding stroke. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 90(9), 1453-1461. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2009.02.026

169. Monnikes, H., Schwan, T., van Rensburg, C., Straszak, A., Theek, C., Luhmann, R., . . . Tholen, A. (2013). Possible etiology of improvements in both quality of life and overlapping gastroesophageal reflux disease by proton pump inhibitor treatment in a prospective randomized controlled trial. BMC Gastroenterol, 13, 145. doi:10.1186/1471-230x-13-145

170. Morone, G., Tramontano, M., Iosa, M., Shofany, J., Iemma, A., Musicco, M., . . . Caltagirone, C.
(2014). The Efficacy of Balance Training with Video Game-Based Therapy in Subacute Stroke
Patients: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Biomed Research International. doi:10.1155/2014/580861

171. Morris, J. H., van Wijck, F., Joice, S., Ogston, S. A., Cole, I., & MacWalter, R. S. (2008). A comparison of bilateral and unilateral upper-limb task training in early poststroke rehabilitation: A randomized controlled trial. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 89(7), 1237-1245. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2007.11.039

172. Motl, R. W., Pilutti, L. A., Sandroff, B. M., Klaren, R., Balantrapu, S., McAuley, E., . . . Fernhall, B. (2013). Rationale and design of a randomized controlled, clinical trial investigating a comprehensive exercise stimulus for improving mobility disability outcomes in persons with multiple sclerosis. Contemporary Clinical Trials, 35(1), 151-158. doi:10.1016/j.cct.2013.03.005

173. Mouncey, P. R., Osborn, T. M., Power, G. S., Harrison, D. A., Sadique, M. Z., Grieve, R. D., . . . Rowan, K. M. (2015). Trial of early, goal-directed resuscitation for septic shock. N Engl J Med, 372(14), 1301-1311. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1500896

174. Mouncey, P. R., Osborn, T. M., Power, G. S., Harrison, D. A., Sadique, M. Z., Grieve, R. D., ... Rowan, K. M. (2015). Protocolised Management In Sepsis (ProMISe): a multicentre randomised controlled trial of the clinical effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of early, goal-directed, protocolised resuscitation for emerging septic shock. Health Technol Assess, 19(97), i-xxv, 1-150. doi:10.3310/hta19970

175. Muench, F., & Morgenstern, J. (2007). Reducing past harm appraisals during treatment predicts worse substance use outcome. Alcohol Clin Exp Res, 31(10 Suppl), 67s-70s. doi:10.1111/j.1530-0277.2007.00497.x

176. Myint, J. M., Yuen, G. F., Yu, T. K., Kng, C. P., Wong, A. M., Chow, K. K., . . . Chun Por, W. (2008). A study of constraint-induced movement therapy in subacute stroke patients in Hong Kong. Clin Rehabil, 22(2), 112-124. doi:10.1177/0269215507080141

177. Nadeau, S. E., Behrman, A. L., Davis, S. E., Reid, K., Wu, S. S., Stidham, B. S., . . . Rothi, L. J. G. (2004). Donepezil as an adjuvant to constraint-induced therapy for upper-limb dysfunction after stroke: An exploratory randomized clinical trial. Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development, 41(4), 525-533. doi:10.1682/jrrd.2003.07.0108

178. Nef, T., Mihelj, M., & Riener, R. (2007). ARMin: a robot for patient-cooperative arm therapy. Medical & Biological Engineering & Computing, 45(9), 887-900. doi:10.1007/s11517-007-0226-6

179. Nijland, R., Kwakkel, G., Bakers, J., & van Wegen, E. (2011). Constraint-induced movement therapy for the upper paretic limb in acute or sub-acute stroke: a systematic review. International Journal of Stroke, 6(5), 425-433. doi:10.1111/j.1747-4949.2011.00646.x

180. Noll, R. B., MacLean, W. E., Jr., Whitt, J. K., Kaleita, T. A., Stehbens, J. A., Waskerwitz, M. J., . .
Hammond, G. D. (1997). Behavioral adjustment and social functioning of long-term survivors of childhood leukemia: parent and teacher reports. J Pediatr Psychol, 22(6), 827-841.

181. Norouzi-Gheidari, N., Archambault, P. S., & Fung, J. (2012). Effects of robot-assisted therapy on stroke rehabilitation in upper limbs: Systematic review and meta-analysis of the literature. Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development, 49(4), 479-495.

182. O'Connor, D., Bate, J., Wade, R., Clack, R., Dhir, S., Hough, R., . . . Samarasinghe, S. (2014).

183. Infection-related mortality in children with acute lymphoblastic leukemia: an analysis of infectious deaths on UKALL2003. Blood, 124(7), 1056-1061. doi:10.1182/blood-2014-03-560847

184. Page, S. J., Dunning, K., Hermann, V., Leonard, A., & Levine, P. (2011). Longer versus shorter mental practice sessions for affected upper extremity movement after stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation, 25(7), 627-637. doi:10.1177/0269215510395793

185. Page, S. J., Fulk, G. D., & Boyne, P. (2012). Clinically Important Differences for the Upper-Extremity Fugl-Meyer Scale in People With Minimal to Moderate Impairment Due to Chronic Stroke.
Phys Ther, 92(6), 791-798. doi:10.2522/ptj.20110009

186. Page, S. J., Gater, D. R., & Bach-y-Rita, P. (2004). Reconsidering the motor recovery plateau in stroke rehabilitation. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 85(8), 1377-1381. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2003.12.031

(**) 187. Page, S. J., Schmid, A., & Harris, J. E. (2012). Optimizing Terminology for Stroke Motor Rehabilitation: Recommendations From the American Congress of Rehabilitation Medicine Stroke Movement Interventions Subcommittee. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 93(8), 1395-1399. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2012.03.005

188. Page, S. J., Levine, P., & Leonard, A. (2007). Mental practice in chronic stroke: results of a randomized, placebo-controlled trial. Stroke, 38(4), 1293-1297. doi:10.1161/01.STR.0000260205.67348.2b

189. Page, S. J., Levine, P., & Leonard, A. C. (2005a). Effects of mental practice on affected limb use and function in chronic stroke. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 86(3), 399-402. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2004.10.002

190. Page, S. J., Levine, P., & Leonard, A. C. (2005b). Modified constraint-induced therapy in acute stroke: a randomized controlled pilot study. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 19(1), 27-32. doi:10.1177/1545968304272701

191. Pang, M. Y., Harris, J. E., & Eng, J. J. (2006). A community-based upper-extremity group exercise program improves motor function and performance of functional activities in chronic stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 87(1), 1-9. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2005.08.113

(*) 192. Parry, R. H., Lincoln, N. B., & Vass, C. D. (1999). Effect of severity of arm impairment on response to additional physiotherapy early after stroke. Clinical Rehabilitation, 13(3), 187-198. doi:10.1191/026921599676198929

193. Parsons, S. K., Fairclough, D. L., Wang, J., & Hinds, P. S. (2012). Comparing longitudinal assessments of quality of life by patient and parent in newly diagnosed children with cancer: the value of both raters' perspectives. Qual Life Res, 21(5), 915-923. doi:10.1007/s11136-011-9986-4

194. Pellegrini, C. A., Hoffman, S. A., Collins, L. M., & Spring, B. (2014). Optimization of remotely delivered intensive lifestyle treatment for obesity using the Multiphase Optimization Strategy: Opt-IN study protocol. Contemp Clin Trials, 38(2), 251-259. doi:10.1016/j.cct.2014.05.007

195. Penno, G., Solini, A., Bonora, E., Fondelli, C., Orsi, E., Zerbini, G., . . . Pugliese, G. (2013). Gender differences in cardiovascular disease risk factors, treatments and complications in patients with type 2 diabetes: the RIACE Italian multicentre study. J Intern Med, 274(2), 176-191. doi:10.1111/joim.12073

196. Pidcock, F. S., Garcia, T., Trovato, M. K., Schultz, S. C., & Brady, K. D. (2009). Pediatric Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy: A Promising Intervention for Childhood Hemiparesis. Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation, 16(5), 339-345. doi:10.1310/tsr1605-339

197. Pinter, M. M., & Brainin, M. (2012). Rehabilitation after stroke in older people. Maturitas, 71(2), 104-108. doi:10.1016/j.maturitas.2011.11.011

198. Platz, T. (2003). Evidence-based arm rehabilitation - a systematic review of the literature. *Nervenarzt*, *74*(10), 841-+. doi:10.1007/s00115-003-1549-7

199. Platz, T., van Kaick, S., Mehrholz, J., Leidner, O., Eickhof, C., & Pohl, M. (2009). Best Conventional Therapy Versus Modular Impairment-Oriented Training for Arm Paresis After Stroke: A Single-Blind, Multicenter Randomized Controlled Trial. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 23(7), 706-716. doi:10.1177/1545968309335974

200. Ploughman, M., McCarthy, J., Bosse, M., Sullivan, H. J., & Corbett, D. (2008). Does Treadmill Exercise Improve Performance of Cognitive or Upper-Extremity Tasks in People With Chronic Stroke? A Randomized Cross-Over Trial. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 89(11), 2041-2047. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2008.05.017

(**) 201. Pollock, A., Farmer, S. E., Brady, M. C., Langhorne, P., Mead, G. E., Mehrholz, J., & van Wijck, F. (2014). Interventions for improving upper limb function after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(11). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD010820.pub2

202. Pomeroy, V. M., Clark, C. A., Miller, J. S. G., Baron, J. C., Markus, H. S., & Tallis, R. C. (2005). The potential for utilizing the "mirror neurone system" to enhance recovery of the severely affected upper limb early after stroke: A review and hypothesis. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 19(1), 4-13. doi:10.1177/1545968304274351

203. Pomeroy, V. M., King, L., Pollock, A., Baily-Hallam, A., & Langhorne, P. (2006). Electrostimulation for promoting recovery of movement or functional ability after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(2). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD003241.pub2

204. Prange, G. B., Kottink, A. I., Buurke, J. H., Eckhardt, M. M., van Keulen-Rouweler, B. J., Ribbers, G. M., & Rietman, J. S. (2015). The effect of arm support combined with rehabilitation games on upper-extremity function in subacute stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 29(2), 174-182. doi:10.1177/1545968314535985

205. Puh, U., & Hlebs, S. (2013). The effects and underlying mechanisms of mirror therapy - literature review. Zdravniski Vestnik-Slovenian Medical Journal, 82(6), 410-418

206. Pui, C. H., Campana, D., Pei, D., Bowman, W. P., Sandlund, J. T., Kaste, S. C., . . . Relling, M. V. (2009). Treating childhood acute lymphoblastic leukemia without cranial irradiation. N Engl J Med, 360(26), 2730-2741. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa0900386

207. Rabadi, M. H. (2011). Review of the randomized clinical stroke rehabilitation trials in 2009. *Medical Science Monitor*, *17*(2), RA25-RA43.

208. Rand, D., Zeilig, G., & Kizony, R. (2015). Rehab-let: touchscreen tablet for self-training impaired dexterity post stroke: study protocol for a pilot randomized controlled trial. Trials, 16, 277. doi:10.1186/s13063-015-0796-9

209. Reid, L. B., Rose, S. E., & Boyd, R. N. (2015). Rehabilitation and neuroplasticity in children with unilateral cerebral palsy. Nature Reviews Neurology, 11(7), 390-400. doi:10.1038/nrneurol.2015.97

210. Renner, C. I. E., Outermans, J., Ludwig, R., Brendel, C., Kwakkel, G., & Hummelsheim, H.
(2016). Group therapy task training versus individual task training during inpatient stroke rehabilitation:
a randomised controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation, 30(7), 637-648. doi:10.1177/0269215515600206

211. Rittenhouse, R. K., White, K., Lowitzer, C., & Shisler, L. (1990). The costs and benefits of providing early intervention to very young, severely hearing-impaired children in the United States: the conceptual outline of a longitudinal research study and some preliminary findings. Br J Disord Commun, 25(2), 195-208.

(*) 212. Rodgers, H., Mackintosh, J., Price, C., Wood, R., McNamee, P., Fearon, T., . . . Curless, R. (2003). Does an early increased-intensity interdisciplinary upper limb therapy programme following acute stroke improve outcome? Clin Rehabil, 17(6), 579-589.

213. Rofes, L., Arreola, V., Lopez, I., Martin, A., Sebastian, M., Ciurana, A., & Clave, P. (2013). Effect of surface sensory and motor electrical stimulation on chronic poststroke oropharyngeal dysfunction. Neurogastroenterol Motil, 25(11), 888-e701. doi:10.1111/nmo.12211

214. Rosenblum, A., Magura, S., Palij, M., Foote, J., Handelsman, L., & Stimmel, B. (1999). Enhanced treatment outcomes for cocaine-using methadone patients. Drug Alcohol Depend, 54(3), 207-218.

(*) 215. Ross, L. F., Harvey, L. A., & Lannin, N. A. (2009). Do people with acquired brain impairment benefit from additional therapy specifically directed at the hand? A randomized controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation, 23(6), 492-503. doi:10.1177/0269215508101733

216. Ross, L. F., Harvey, L. A., & Lannin, N. A. (2016). Strategies for increasing the intensity of upper limb task-specific practice after acquired brain impairment: A secondary analysis from a randomised controlled trial. British Journal of Occupational Therapy, 79(6), 353-360. doi:10.1177/0308022615615590

217. Rostami, H. R., Arastoo, A. A., Nejad, S. J., Mahany, M. K., Malamiri, R. A., & Goharpey, S. (2012). Effects of modified constraint-induced movement therapy in virtual environment on upper-limb function in children with spastic hemiparetic cerebral palsy: a randomised controlled trial. NeuroRehabilitation, 31(4), 357-365. doi:10.3233/nre-2012-00804

218. Ryan, T., Enderby, P., & Rigby, A. S. (2006). A randomized controlled trial to evaluate intensity of community-based rehabilitation provision following stroke or hip fracture in old age. Clinical Rehabilitation, 20(2), 123-131. doi:10.1191/0269215506cr933oa

219. Sakzewski, L., Provan, K., Ziviani, J., & Boyd, R. N. (2015). Comparison of dosage of intensive upper limb therapy for children with unilateral cerebral palsy: How big should the therapy pill be? Research in Developmental Disabilities, 37, 9-16. doi:10.1016/j.ridd.2014.10.050

220. Schaefer, S. Y., Patterson, C. B., & Lang, C. E. (2013). Transfer of Training Between Distinct Motor Tasks After Stroke: Implications for Task-Specific Approaches to Upper-Extremity Neurorehabilitation. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 27(7), 602-612. doi:10.1177/1545968313481279

221. Schneider, E. J., Lannin, N. A., Ada, L., & Schmidt, J. (2016). Increasing the amount of usual rehabilitation improves activity after stroke: a systematic review. Journal of Physiotherapy, 62(4), 182-187. doi:10.1016/j.jphys.2016.08.006

222. Schuster, C., Maunz, G., Lutz, K., Kischka, U., Sturzenegger, R., & Ettlin, T. (2011). Dexamphetamine improves upper extremity outcome during rehabilitation after stroke: a pilot randomized controlled trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(8), 749-755. doi:10.1177/1545968311405674

223. Schweighofer, N., Han, C. E., Wolf, S. L., Arbib, M. A., & Winstein, C. J. (2009). A Functional Threshold for Long-Term Use of Hand and Arm Function Can Be Determined: Predictions From a Computational Model and Supporting Data From the Extremity Constraint-Induced Therapy Evaluation (EXCITE) Trial. Physical Therapy, 89(12), 1327-1336. doi:10.2522/ptj.20080402

224. Scrivener, K., Jones, T., Schurr, K., Graham, P. L., & Dean, C. M. (2015). After-hours or weekend rehabilitation improves outcomes and increases physical activity but does not affect length of stay: a systematic review. Journal of Physiotherapy, 61(2), 61-67. doi:10.1016/j.jphys.2015.02.017

225. Severinsen, K., Jakobsen, J. K., Pedersen, A. R., Overgaard, K., & Andersen, H. (2014). Effects of Resistance Training and Aerobic Training on Ambulation in Chronic Stroke. American Journal of Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation, 93(1), 29-42. doi:10.1097/PHM.0b013e3182a518e1

226. Sevick, M., Eklund, E., Mensch, A., Foreman, M., Standeven, J., & Engsberg, J. (2016). Using Free Internet Videogames in Upper Extremity Motor Training for Children with Cerebral Palsy. Behavioral Sciences, 6(2). doi:10.3390/bs6020010

227. Sheehan, J. L., Winzeler-Mercay, U., & Mudie, M. H. (2006). A randomized controlled pilot study to obtain the best estimate of the size of the effect of a thermoplastic resting splint on spasticity in the stroke-affected wrist and fingers. Clin Rehabil, 20(12), 1032-1037. doi:10.1177/0269215506071267

228. Sheehy, L., Taillon-Hobson, A., Sveistrup, H., Bilodeau, M., Fergusson, D., Levac, D., & Finestone, H. (2016). Does the addition of virtual reality training to a standard program of inpatient rehabilitation improve sitting balance ability and function after stroke? Protocol for a single-blind randomized controlled trial. BMC Neurol, 16, 42. doi:10.1186/s12883-016-0563-x

229. Shen, Y., Yin, Z. F., Fan, Y. B., Chen, C. F., Dai, W. J., Yi, W. C., . . . Shan, C. L. (2015). Comparison of the Effects of Contralaterally Controlled Functional Electrical Stimulation and Neuromuscular Electrical Stimulation on Upper Extremity Functions in Patients with Stroke. *Cns &* Neurological *Disorders-Drug Targets, 14*(10), 1260-1266. doi:10.2174/1871527315666151111122457

230. Sherwood, N. E., Butryn, M. L., Forman, E. M., Almirall, D., Seburg, E. M., Lauren Crain, A., . . . Jeffery, R. W. (2016). The BestFIT trial: A SMART approach to developing individualized weight loss treatments. Contemp Clin Trials, 47, 209-216. doi:10.1016/j.cct.2016.01.011

231. Shi, Y. X., Tian, F. H., Yang, K. H., & Zhao, Y. (2011). Modified Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy Versus Traditional Rehabilitation in Patients With Upper-Extremity Dysfunction After Stroke: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 92(6), 972-982. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2010.12.036

232. Shim, S., & Jung, J. (2015). Effects of bilateral training on motor function, amount of activity and activity intensity measured with an accelerometer of patients with stroke. Journal of Physical Therapy Science, 27(3), 751-754.

233. Shimodozono, M. (2013). [Repetitive facilitative exercise: recent evidence and development for combination therapy]. Rinsho Shinkeigaku, 23(11), 1267-1269.

234. Shin, J. H., Bog Park, S., & Ho Jang, S. (2015). Effects of game-based virtual reality on healthrelated quality of life in chronic stroke patients: A randomized, controlled study. Comput Biol Med, 63, 92-98. doi:10.1016/j.compbiomed.2015.03.011

235. Shin, J. H., Kim, M. Y., Lee, J. Y., Jeon, Y. J., Kim, S., Lee, S., . . . Choi, Y. (2016). Effects of virtual reality-based rehabilitation on distal upper extremity function and health-related quality of life: a

single-blinded, randomized controlled trial. J Neuroeng Rehabil, 13, 17. doi:10.1186/s12984-016-0125-x

236. Shindo, K., Fujiwara, T., Hara, J., Oba, H., Hotta, F., Tsuji, T., . . . Liu, M. (2011). Effectiveness of hybrid assistive neuromuscular dynamic stimulation therapy in patients with subacute stroke: a randomized controlled pilot trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(9), 830-837. doi:10.1177/1545968311408917

237. Siegert, R. J., Lord, S., & Porter, K. (2004). Constraint-induced movement therapy: time for a little restraint? Clinical Rehabilitation, 18(1), 110-114. doi:10.1191/0269215504cr711oa

238. Sirtori, V., Corbetta, D., Moja, L., & Gatti, R. (2009). Constraint-induced movement therapy for upper extremities in stroke patients. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(4). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD004433.pub2

239. Sivan, M., Gallagher, J., Makower, S., Keeling, D., Bhakta, B., O'Connor, R. J., & Levesley, M. (2014). Home-based Computer Assisted Arm Rehabilitation (hCAAR) robotic device for upper limb exercise after stroke: results of a feasibility study in home setting. Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation, 11. doi:10.1186/1743-0003-11-163

240. Slijper, A., Svensson, K. E., Backlund, P., Engstrom, H., & Sunnerhagen, K. S. (2014). Computer game-based upper extremity training in the home environment in stroke persons: a single subject design. Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation, 11. doi:10.1186/1743-0003-11-35

241. Smania, N., Aglioti, S. M., Cosentino, A., Camin, M., Gandolfi, M., Tinazzi, M., . . . Faccioli, S. (2009). A modified constraint-induced movement therapy (CIT) program improves paretic arm use and function in children with cerebral palsy. Eur J Phys Rehabil Med, 45(4), 493-500.

242. Smania, N., Gandolfi, M., Paolucci, S., Iosa, M., Ianes, P., Recchia, S., . . . Farina, S. (2012). Reduced-Intensity Modified Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy Versus Conventional Therapy for Upper Extremity Rehabilitation After Stroke: A Multicenter Trial. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 26(9), 1035-1045. doi:10.1177/1545968312446003

243. Stergiopoulos, V., Hwang, S. W., Gozdzik, A., Nisenbaum, R., Latimer, E., Rabouin, D., . . . Goering, P. N. (2015). Effect of scattered-site housing using rent supplements and intensive case management on housing stability among homeless adults with mental illness: a randomized trial. Jama, 313(9), 905-915. doi:10.1001/jama.2015.1163

244. Stevenson, T., Thalman, L., Christie, H., & Poluha, W. (2012). Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy Compared to Dose-Matched Interventions for Upper-Limb Dysfunction in Adult Survivors of Stroke: A Systematic Review with Meta-analysis. Physiotherapy Canada, 64(4), 397-413. doi:10.3138/ptc.2011-24 245. Subramanian, S. K., Lourenco, C. B., Chilingaryan, G., Sveistrup, H., & Levin, M. F. (2013). Arm motor recovery using a virtual reality intervention in chronic stroke: randomized control trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 27(1), 13-23. doi:10.1177/1545968312449695

(*) 246. Sunderland, A., Tinson, D. J., Bradley, E. L., Fletcher, D., Langton Hewer, R., & Wade, D. T. (1992). Enhanced physical therapy improves recovery of arm function after stroke. A randomised controlled trial. J Neurol Neurosurg Psychiatry, 55(7), 530-535.

247. Tang, Q. P., Tan, L. H., Li, B. J., Huang, X. S., Ouyang, C. H., Zhan, H. L., . . . Wu, L. X. (2014). Early Sitting, Standing, and Walking in Conjunction With Contemporary Bobath Approach for Stroke Patients With Severe Motor Deficit. *Top Stroke Rehabil, 21*(2), 120-127. doi:10.1310/tsr2102-120

248. Taub, E., Ramey, S. L., DeLuca, S., & Echols, K. (2004). Efficacy of constraint-induced movement therapy for children with cerebral palsy with asymmetric motor impairment. Pediatrics, 113(2), 305-312. doi:10.1542/peds.113.2.305

249. Teasell, R., Bayona, N., Salter, K., Hellings, C., & Bitensky, J. (2006). Progress in clinical neurosciences: Stroke recovery and rehabilitation. Canadian Journal of Neurological Sciences, 33(4), 357-364.

250. Teasell, R. W., & Kalra, L. (2004). What's new in stroke rehabilitation. Stroke, 35(2), 383-385. doi:10.1161/01.str.0000115937.94104.76

251. Thielbar, K. O., Lord, T. J., Fischer, H. C., Lazzaro, E. C., Barth, K. C., Stoykov, M. E., . . . Kamper, D. G. (2014). Training finger individuation with a mechatronic-virtual reality system leads to improved fine motor control post-stroke. J Neuroeng Rehabil, 11, 171. doi:10.1186/1743-0003-11-171

252. Thoolen, B. J., de Ridder, D. T., Bensing, J. M., Gorter, K. J., & Rutten, G. E. (2006). Psychological outcomes of patients with screen-detected type 2 diabetes: the influence of time since diagnosis and treatment intensity. Diabetes Care, 29(10), 2257-2262. doi:10.2337/dc06-0617

253. Thrane, G., Friborg, O., Anke, A., & Indredayik, B. (2014). A META-ANALYSIS OF CONSTRAINT-INDUCED MOVEMENT THERAPY AFTER STROKE. Journal of Rehabilitation Medicine, 46(9), 833-842. doi:10.2340/16501977-1859

254. Timko, C., & Sempel, J. M. (2004). Short-term outcomes of matching dual diagnosis patients' symptom severity to treatment intensity. J Subst Abuse Treat, 26(3), 209-218. doi:10.1016/s0740-5472(04)00002-9

255. Timmermans, A. A. A., Lemmens, R. J. M., Monfrance, M., Geers, R. P. J., Bakx, W., Smeets, R., & Seelen, H. A. M. (2014). Effects of task-oriented robot training on arm function, activity, and quality of life in chronic stroke patients: a randomized controlled trial. Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation, 11. doi:10.1186/1743-0003-11-45

(**) 256. Timmermans, A. A. A., Spooren, A. I. F., Kingma, H., & Seelen, H. A. M. (2010). Influence of Task-Oriented Training Content on Skilled Arm-Hand Performance in Stroke: A Systematic Review. Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 24(9), 858-870. doi:10.1177/1545968310368963

257. Toh, S. F. M., & Fong, K. N. K. (2012). Systematic Review on the Effectiveness of Mirror Therapy in Training Upper Limb Hemiparesis after Stroke. Hong Kong Journal of Occupational Therapy, 22(2), 84-95. doi:10.1016/j.hkjot.2012.12.009

258. Trammell, M., Kapoor, P., Swank, C., & Driver, S. (2017). Improving practice with integration of patient directed activity during inpatient rehabilitation. *Clin Rehabil, 31*(1), 3-10. doi:10.1177/0269215515625100

259. Tyson, S., Wilkinson, J., Thomas, N., Selles, R., McCabe, C., Tyrrell, P., & Vail, A. (2015). Phase II Pragmatic Randomized Controlled Trial of Patient-Led Therapies (Mirror Therapy and Lower-Limb Exercises) During Inpatient Stroke Rehabilitation. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 29(9), 818-826. doi:10.1177/1545968314565513

260. Underwood, J., Clark, P. C., Blanton, S., Aycock, D. M., & Wolf, S. L. (2006). Pain, fatigue, and intensity of practice in people with stroke who are receiving constraint-induced movement therapy. *Phys Ther, 86*(9), 1241-1250. doi:10.2522/ptj.20050357

261. van Delden, A. L., Beek, P. J., Roerdink, M., Kwakkel, G., & Peper, C. L. (2015). Unilateral and bilateral upper-limb training interventions after stroke have similar effects on bimanual coupling strength. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 29(3), 255-267. doi:10.1177/1545968314543498

262. van Delden, A. L., Peper, C. L., Nienhuys, K. N., Zijp, N. I., Beek, P. J., & Kwakkel, G. (2013). Unilateral versus bilateral upper limb training after stroke: the Upper Limb Training After Stroke clinical trial. Stroke, 44(9), 2613-2616. doi:10.1161/strokeaha.113.001969

263. van Delden, A. E. Q., Peper, C. E., Beek, P. J., & Kwakkel, G. (2012). UNILATERAL VERSUS BILATERAL UPPER LIMB EXERCISE THERAPY AFTER STROKE: A SYSTEMATIC REVIEW. Journal of Rehabilitation Medicine, 44(2), 106-117. doi:10.2340/16501977-0928

264. van der Lee, J. H., Beckerman, H., Knol, D. L., de Vet, H. C., & Bouter, L. M. (2004). Clinimetric properties of the motor activity log for the assessment of arm use in hemiparetic patients. Stroke, 35(6), 1410-1414. doi:10.1161/01.STR.0000126900.24964.7^e

265. van der Lee, J. H., Snels, I. A., Beckerman, H., Lankhorst, G. J., Wagenaar, R. C., & Bouter, L.M. (2001). Exercise therapy for arm function in stroke patients: a systematic review of randomized controlled trials. Clinical Rehabilitation, 15(1), 20-31.

266. van der Lee, J. H., Wagenaar, R. C., Lankhorst, G. J., Vogelaar, T. W., Deville, W. L., & Bouter, L. M. (1999). Forced use of the upper extremity in chronic stroke patients: results from a single-blind randomized clinical trial. Stroke, 30(11), 2369-2375.

267. van der Werf, A., Blauwhoff-Buskermolen, S., Langius, J. A., Berkhof, J., Verheul, H. M., & de van der Schueren, M. A. (2015). The effect of individualized nutritional counseling on muscle mass and treatment outcome in patients with metastatic colorectal cancer undergoing chemotherapy: a randomized controlled trial protocol. BMC Cancer, 15, 98. doi:10.1186/s12885-015-1092-5

268. Van Eys, J., Berry, D., Crist, W., Doering, E., Fernbach, D., Pullen, J., & Shuster, J. (1989). Treatment intensity and outcome for children with acute lymphocytic leukemia of standard risk. A Pediatric Oncology Group Study. Cancer, 63(8), 1466-1471.

269. van Vliet, P. M., Lincoln, N. B., & Foxall, A. (2005). Comparison of Bobath based and movement science based treatment for stroke: a randomised controlled trial. Journal of Neurology Neurosurgery and Psychiatry, 76(4), 503-508. doi:10.1136/jnnp.2004.040436

270. Verbunt, J. A., Seelen, H. A. M., Ramos, F. P., Michielsen, B. H. M., Wetzelaer, W. L., & Moennekens, M. (2008). Mental practice-based rehabilitation training to improve arm function and daily activity performance in stroke patients: a randomized clinical trial. Bmc Neurology, 8. doi:10.1186/1471-2377-8-7

271. Vinas-Diz, S., & Sobrido-Prieto, M. (2016). Virtual reality for therapeutic purposes in stroke: A systematic review. Neurologia, 31(4), 255-277. doi:10.1016/j.nrl.2015.06.012

272. Vloothuis, J. D. M., Mulder, M., Veerbeek, J. M., Konijnenbelt, M., Visser-Meily, J. M. A., Ket, J. C. F., . . . van Wegen, E. E. H. (2016). Caregiver-mediated exercises for improving outcomes after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews(12). doi:10.1002/14651858.CD011058.pub2

273. Vora, A., Goulden, N., Wade, R., Mitchell, C., Hancock, J., Hough, R., . . . Richards, S. (2013). Treatment reduction for children and young adults with low-risk acute lymphoblastic leukaemia defined by minimal residual disease (UKALL 2003): a randomised controlled trial. Lancet Oncol, 14(3), 199-209. doi:10.1016/s1470-2045(12)70600-9

274. Vural, S. P., Yuzer, G. F. N., Ozcan, D. S., Ozbudak, S. D., & Ozgirgin, N. (2016). Effects of Mirror Therapy in Stroke Patients With Complex Regional Pain Syndrome Type 1: A Randomized Controlled Study. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation, 97(4), 575-581. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2015.12.008

275. Wang, T. N., Wu, C. Y., Chen, C. L., Shieh, J. Y., Lu, L., & Lin, K. C. (2013). Logistic regression analyses for predicting clinically important differences in motor capacity, motor performance, and functional independence after constraint-induced therapy in children with cerebral palsy. Research in Developmental Disabilities, 34(3), 1044-1051. doi:10.1016/j.ridd.2012.11.012

276. Wellwood, I., & Grp, G. (2004). Can augmented physiotherapy input enhance recovery of mobility after stroke? A randomized controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation, 18(5), 529-537. doi:10.1191/0269215504cr768oa

277. Whitall, J., Waller, S. M., Sorkin, J. D., Forrester, L. W., Macko, R. F., Hanley, D. F., . . . Luft, A. (2011). Bilateral and unilateral arm training improve motor function through differing neuroplastic mechanisms: a single-blinded randomized controlled trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(2), 118-129. doi:10.1177/1545968310380685

278. Winstein, C. J., Wolf, S. L., Dromerick, A. W., Lane, C. J., Nelsen, M. A., Lewthwaite, R., . . . Azen, S. P. (2013). Interdisciplinary Comprehensive Arm Rehabilitation Evaluation (ICARE): a randomized controlled trial protocol. BMC Neurol, 13, 5. doi:10.1186/1471-2377-13-5

279. Winstein, C. J., Wolf, S. L., Dromerick, A. W., Lane, C. J., Nelsen, M. A., Lewthwaite, R., . . . Azen, S. P. (2016). Effect of a Task-Oriented Rehabilitation Program on Upper Extremity Recovery Following Motor Stroke: The ICARE Randomized Clinical Trial. Jama, 315(6), 571-581. doi:10.1001/jama.2016.0276

280. Winstein, C. J., Stein, J., Arena, R., Bates, B., Cherney, L. R., Cramer, S. C., . . . Council Quality Care Outcomes, R. (2016). Guidelines for Adult Stroke Rehabilitation and Recovery A Guideline for Healthcare Professionals From the American Heart Association/American Stroke Association. *Stroke*, *47*(6), E98-E169. doi:10.1161/str.00000000000098

281. Wolf, S. L., Milton, S. B., Reiss, A., Easley, K. A., Shenvi, N. V., & Clark, P. C. (2012). Further assessment to determine the additive effect of botulinum toxin type A on an upper extremity exercise program to enhance function among individuals with chronic stroke but extensor capability. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 93(4), 578-587. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2011.10.026

282. Wolf, S. L., Winstein, C. J., Miller, J. P., Taub, E., Uswatte, G., Morris, D., . . . Investigators, E. (2006). Effect of constraint-induced movement therapy on upper extremity function 3 to 9 months after stroke - The EXCITE randomized clinical trial. Jama-Journal of the American Medical Association, 296(17), 2095-2104. doi:10.1001/jama.296.17.2095

283. Wolf, S. L., Sahu, K., Bay, R. C., Buchanan, S., Reiss, A., Linder, S., . . . Alberts, J. (2015). The HAAPI (Home Arm Assistance Progression Initiative) Trial: A Novel Robotics Delivery Approach in Stroke Rehabilitation. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 29(10), 958-968. doi:10.1177/1545968315575612

284. Wolf, S. L., Winstein, C. J., Miller, J. P., Taub, E., Uswatte, G., Morris, D., . . . Nichols-Larsen, D. (2006). Effect of constraint-induced movement therapy on upper extremity function 3 to 9 months after stroke: the EXCITE randomized clinical trial. Jama, 296(17), 2095-2104. doi:10.1001/jama.296.17.2095

285. Wolfe, C. D., Tilling, K., & Rudd, A. G. (2000). The effectiveness of community-based rehabilitation for stroke patients who remain at home: a pilot randomized trial. Clin Rehabil, 14(6), 563-569.

286. Woynaroski, T., Yoder, P. J., Fey, M. E., & Warren, S. F. (2014). A transactional model of spoken vocabulary variation in toddlers with intellectual disabilities. J Speech Lang Hear Res, 57(5), 1754-1763. doi:10.1044/2014_jslhr-l-13-0252

287. Wu, C. Y., Chen, C. L., Tang, S. F., Lin, K. C., & Huang, Y. Y. (2007). Kinematic and clinical analyses of upper-extremity movements after constraint-induced movement therapy in patients with stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 88(8), 964-970. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2007.05.012

288. Wu, C. Y., Chen, Y. A., Chen, H. C., Lin, K. C., & Yeh, I. L. (2012). Pilot trial of distributed constraint-induced therapy with trunk restraint to improve poststroke reach to grasp and trunk kinematics. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 26(3), 247-255. doi:10.1177/1545968311415862

289. Wu, C. Y., Huang, P. C., Chen, Y. T., Lin, K. C., & Yang, H. W. (2013). Effects of Mirror Therapy on Motor and Sensory Recovery in Chronic Stroke: A Randomized Controlled Trial. *Arch Phys Med Rehabil*, *94*(6), 1023-1030. doi:10.1016/j.apmr.2013.02.007

290. Wu, C. Y., Chuang, L. L., Lin, K. C., Chen, H. C., & Tsay, P. K. (2011). Randomized trial of distributed constraint-induced therapy versus bilateral arm training for the rehabilitation of upper-limb motor control and function after stroke. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 25(2), 130-139. doi:10.1177/1545968310380686

291. Wu, C. Y., Chen, Y. A., Lin, K. C., Chao, C. P., & Chen, Y. T. (2012). Constraint-Induced Therapy With Trunk Restraint for Improving Functional Outcomes and Trunk-Arm Control After Stroke: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Physical Therapy, 92(4), 483-492. doi:10.2522/ptj.20110213

292. Wu, C. Y., Lin, K. C., Chen, H. C., Chen, I. H., & Hong, W. H. (2007). Effects of modified constraint-induced movement therapy on movement kinematics and daily function in patients with stroke: a kinematic study of motor control mechanisms. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 21(5), 460-466. doi:10.1177/1545968307303411

293. Wyllie, B. F., Garg, A. X., Macnab, J., Rock, G. A., & Clark, W. F. (2006). Thrombotic thrombocytopenic purpura/haemolytic uraemic syndrome: a new index predicting response to plasma exchange. Br J Haematol, 132(2), 204-209. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2141.2005.05857.x

294. Yates, M., Kelemen, A., & Lanyi, C. S. (2016). Virtual reality gaming in the rehabilitation of the upper extremities post-stroke. Brain Injury, 30(7), 855-863. doi:10.3109/02699052.2016.1144146

295. Yoo, G. E., & Kim, S. J. (2016). Rhythmic Auditory Cueing in Motor Rehabilitation for Stroke Patients: Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. *Journal of* Music *Therapy*, *53*(2), 149-177. doi:10.1093/jmt/thw003

296. Zandsteeg, A. M., Hirmann, P., Pasma, H. R., Yska, J. P., & ten Brinke, A. (2009). Effect of MgSO(4) on FEV(1) in stable severe asthma patients with chronic airflow limitation. Magnes Res, 22(4), 256-261. doi:10.1684/mrh.2009.0184

297. Zimmermann-Schlatter, A., Schuster, C., Puhan, M. A., Siekierka, E., & Steurer, J. (2008). Efficacy of motor imagery in post-stroke rehabilitation: a systematic review. Journal of Neuroengineering and Rehabilitation, 5. doi:10.1186/1743-0003-5-8

298. Zondervan, D. K., Augsburger, R., Bodenhoefer, B., Friedman, N., Reinkensmeyer, D. J., & Cramer, S. C. (2015). Machine-Based, Self-guided Home Therapy for Individuals With Severe Arm Impairment After Stroke: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Neurorehabil Neural Repair, 29(5), 395-406. doi:10.1177/1545968314550368

299. Zondervan, D. K., Friedman, N., Chang, E., Zhao, X., Augsburger, R., Reinkensmeyer, D. J., & Cramer, S. C. (2016). Home-based hand rehabilitation after chronic stroke: Randomized, controlled single-blind trial comparing the MusicGlove with a conventional exercise program. Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development, 53(4), 457-471. doi:10.1682/jrrd.2015.04.0057

300. Nichols-Larsen, D. S., Clark, P. C., Zeringue, A., Greenspan, A., & Blanton, S. (2005). Factors influencing stroke survivors' quality of life during subacute recovery. Stroke, 36(7), 1480-1484. doi:10.1161/01.STR.0000170706.13595.4f

301. Heuschmann, P.U., et al., *Incidence of stroke in Europe at the beginning of the 21st century.* Stroke, 2009. **40**(5): p. 1557-63.

302. Truelsen, T., et al., *Stroke incidence and prevalence in Europe: a review of available data.* European journal of neurology, 2006. **13**(6): p. 581-598.

303. Mukherjee, D., & Patil, C. G. (2011). Epidemiology and the Global Burden of Stroke. *World Neurosurgery*, *76*(6), S85-S90. doi:10.1016/j.wneu.2011.07.023

304. Bejot, Y., et al., Epidemiology of stroke in Europe: geographic and environmental differences. Journal of the neurological sciences, 2007. 262(1): p. 85-88.

305. Pollock, A., et al., *Interventions for improving upper limb function after stroke*. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews, 2014(11).

306. Van Peppen, R.P., et al., *The impact of physical therapy on functional outcomes after stroke: what's the evidence?* Clin Rehabil, 2004. **18**(8): p. 833-62.

307. Luke, C., Dodd, K. J., & Brock, K. (2004). Outcomes of the Bobath concept on upper limb recovery following stroke. *Clinical Rehabilitation*, *18*(8), 888-898. doi:10.1191/0269215504cr793oa

308. Timmermans, A. A. A., Spooren, A. I. F., Kingma, H., & Seelen, H. A. M. (2010). Influence of Task-Oriented Training Content on Skilled Arm-Hand Performance in Stroke: A Systematic Review. *Neurorehabilitation and Neural Repair, 24*(9), 858-870. doi:10.1177/1545968310368963

309. Perez-Cruzado, D., Merchan-Baeza, J. A., Gonzalez-Sanchez, M., & Cuesta-Vargas, A. I. (2017). Systematic review of mirror therapy compared with conventional rehabilitation in upper extremity function in stroke survivors. *Australian Occupational Therapy Journal, 64*(2), 91-112. doi:10.1111/1440-1630.12342

310. Zhang, C., Li-Tsang, C. W. P., & Au, R. K. C. (2017). Robotic approaches for the rehabilitation of upper limb recovery after stroke: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *International Journal of Rehabilitation Research*, *40*(1), 19-28. doi:10.1097/mrr.000000000000204

311. Etoom, M., Hawamdeh, M., Hawamdeh, Z., Alwardat, M., Giordani, L., Bacciu, S., . . . Foti, C. (2016). Constraint-induced movement therapy as a rehabilitation intervention for upper extremity in stroke patients: systematic review and meta-analysis. *International Journal of Rehabilitation Research, 39*(3), 197-210. doi:10.1097/mrr.00000000000169

312. WHO ,2017. The top 10 causes of death. http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs310/en/

313. World Population Prospects, 2004. http://esa.un.org/unpp/index.asp?panel=2.

314. Hayward, K. and Brauer, S. (2015). Dose of arm activity training during acute and subacute rehabilitation post stroke: a systematic review of the literature. *Clinical Rehabilitation*, 29(12), pp.1234-1243.

315. Kaur, G., English, C. and Hillier, S. (2012). How Physically Active Are People with Stroke in Physiotherapy Sessions Aimed at Improving Motor Function? A Systematic Review. *Stroke Research and Treatment*, 2012, pp.1-9.

316. Kleim, J. and Jones, T. (2008). Principles of Experience-Dependent Neural Plasticity: Implications for Rehabilitation After Brain Damage. *Journal of Speech Language and Hearing Research*, 51(1), p.S225.

317. Lohse, K., Lang, C. and Boyd, L. (2014). Is More Better? Using Metadata to Explore Dose-Response Relationships in Stroke Rehabilitation. *Stroke*, 45(7), pp.2053-2058.4

318.Langhorne, P., Wagenaar, R. and Partridge, C. (1996). Physiotherapy after stroke: More is better?. *Physiotherapy Research International*, 1(2), pp.75-88.

319 Kwakkel, G., Intensity of practice after stroke: More is better. (2009). Schweizer Archiv für Neurologie und Psychiatrie, 160(07), pp.295-296.

320. Peiris, C., Taylor, N. and Shields, N. (2011). Extra Physical Therapy Reduces Patient Length of Stay and Improves Functional Outcomes and Quality of Life in People With Acute or Subacute Conditions: A Systematic Review. *Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation*, 92(9), pp.1490-1500.

321. Galvin, R., Murphy, B., Cusack, T. and Stokes, E. (2008). The Impact of Increased Duration of Exercise Therapy on Functional Recovery Following Stroke — What Is the Evidence?. *Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation*, 15(4), pp.365-377.

322. Nieto-Sampedro, M. and Nieto-Diaz, M. (2004). Neural plasticity: changes with age. *Journal of Neural Transmission*, 112(1), pp.3-27.

323. Kwakkel, G., Kollen, B., van der Grond, J. and Prevo, A. (2003). Probability of Regaining Dexterity in the Flaccid Upper Limb: Impact of Severity of Paresis and Time Since Onset in Acute Stroke. *Stroke*, 34(9), pp.2181-2186.

324. Lin, J., Hsu, M., Sheu, C., Wu, T., Lin, R., Chen, C. and Hsieh, C. (2009). Psychometric Comparisons of 4 Measures for Assessing Upper-Extremity Function in People With Stroke. *Physical Therapy*, 89(8), pp.840-850.

325. Page, S.J., A. Schmid, and J.E. Harris, Optimizing terminology for stroke motor rehabilitation: recommendations from the American Congress of Rehabilitation Medicine Stroke Movement Interventions Subcommittee. Arch Phys Med Rehabil, 2012. 93(8): p. 1395-9.

326. Cramer S. C., Nelles G., Benson R. R., Kaplan J. D., Parker R. A., Kwong K. K., et al.(1997). A functional mri study of subjects recovered from hemiparetic stroke. Stroke 28, 2518–2527. 10.1161/01.STR.28.12.2518

327. Raghavan P. Upper Limb Motor Impairment After Stroke. Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Clinics of North America. 26: 599-610. PMID 26522900 DOI: 10.1016/j.pmr.2015.06.008

328. Kingwell, E., Marriott, J., Jetté, N., Pringsheim, T., Makhani, N., Morrow, S., Fisk, J., Evans, C., Béland, S., Kulaga, S., Dykeman, J., Wolfson, C., Koch, M. and Marrie, R. (2013). Incidence and prevalence of multiple sclerosis in Europe: a systematic review. BMC Neurology, 13(1).

329.Oskoui, M., Coutinho, F., Dykeman, J., Jetté, N. and Pringsheim, T. (2013). An update on the prevalence of cerebral palsy: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *Developmental Medicine & Child Neurology*, 55(6), pp.509-519.

330. Goulding, R., Thompson, D. and Beech, C. (2004). Caring for patients with hemiplegia in an arm following a stroke. *British Journal of Nursing*, 13(9), pp.534-539.

331. Rumeau-Rouquette C, Grandjean H, Cans C, et al. Prevalence and time trends of disabilities in school-age children. *Int J Epidemiol*.1997;26:137-145

332. Holper, L., Coenen, M., Weise, A., Stucki, G., Cieza, A. and Kesselring, J. (2009). Characterization of functioning in multiple sclerosis using the ICF. *Journal of Neurology*, *257(1)*, *pp.103-113.* 333. Bohn Stafleu van Loghum 2014, Inleiding in evidence-based medicine
http://netherlands.cochrane.org/sites/netherlands.cochrane.org/files/public/uploads/4.4%20Checklist%
20Beoordeling%20randomsed%20controlled%20trial%20%28RCT%29.pdf

8 Appendices part 1

Figure 1: Flowchart of literature search and article selection.

- Table 1: List of abbreviations
- Table 2: Definitions of training parameters
- Table 3: Keywords, combinations and hits in PubMed
- Table 4: Keywords, combinations and hits in WOS
- Table 5: Overview of excluded articles and reasons of exclusion
- Table 6: Cochrane checklist for quality assessment.
- Table 7: Description of the interventions in the included articles
- Table 8: Strengths and limitations of the included articles.
- Table 9: Overview of the study characteristics and outcome measures of the included articles
- Table 10.1 Overview of the effects after intervention: 1 intervention group vs. 1 control group
- Table 10.2: Overview of the effects after intervention: 2 intervention groups vs. 1 control group
- Table 10.3: Overview of the effects after intervention: 3 intervention groups vs. 1 control group
- Table 10.4: Overview of the effects after intervention: 3 intervention groups vs. no control group
- Table 11: Training parameters intervention group
- Table 12: Training parameters control group





Table 1: List of abbreviations

А	Activity (ICF)	
ADL	Activities of daily living	
APT	Assistant physiotherapy	
ARAT	Action research arm test	
AQoL	Australian Quality of Life	
BI	Barthel Index	
CIMT	Constrained induced movement therapy	
COPM	Canadian occupational performance	
DSAHA	Disability of shoulder, arm and hand assessment	
EMI	Extended motricity index	
F	Function (ICF)	
FAC	Functional ambulation classification	
FIM	Functional independence measure	
FMA	Fugl-Meyer assessment	
IM	Individualized maximum	
OHS	Oxford handicap scale	
LACI	Lacunar infarct	
LBST	Learning-based sensorimotor training	
LOS	Length of Stay	
MAL	Motor activity log	
MAL-AOU	Motor activity log – amount of use	
MAL-QOM	Motor activity log – quality of movements	
MAS	Modified Ashworth scale	
MCA	Motor club assessment	
MCIMT	Modified constraint induced movement therapy	
MI	Motricity index	
MIME	Mirror image movement enabler	
MMSE	Mini-mental state examination	
MRC	Medical research council	
MTS	Mobilisation and tactile stimulation	
NHPT	Nine hole peg test	
NIHSS	National Institutes of Health Stroke Scale	
PACI	Partial anterior circulation infarct	
POCI	Posterior circulation infarct	
RMA	Rivermead motor assessment	
RT	Robot therapy	
SMMT Summed manual muscle test		
TACI	Total anterior circulation infract	
THPT	Ten-hole peg test	
QPT	Qualified physiotherapist	
WMFT	Wolf motor function test	

Table 2: Definitions of training parameters

Dose	'The total amount of activity performed during the training period (Page et al., 2012, p. 4) [187].
Frequency	'Number of sessions per day or per week' (Lang et al. 2015, p3)
Duration	'The time period, in days or weeks, over which the intervention is delivered.'
	(Lang et al. 2015, p3)
Amount	'The number of repetitions' (Lang et al 2015, p3)
Number of active	'The amount of time a person is active during each therapy session' (Host et
therapy	al. 2014, p3)
Total number of	The total amount of therapy sessions followed by the patient.
sessions	
Total therapy hours	The total amount of hours of therapy followed by the patient.
Dose-response The pattern of physiological response to varied	
	dosage https://www.merriam-webster.com/medical/dose-response

Table 3: Keywords, combinations and hits in PubMed

#	Keywords in the search bar	January 2017	May 2017
#1	Stroke [Title/abstract]	183.307	189.826
#2	Cerebrovascular accident [MeSH Terms]	103.226	105.224
#3	Multiple sclerosis [MeSH Terms]	49.580	50.000
#4	cerebral palsy [MeSH Terms]	17.699	17.870
#5	Y = stroke OR cerebrovascular accident OR multiple sclerosis OR cerebral palsy	282.102	289.446
#6	upper extremity [Title/abstract]	16.071	16.550
#7	upper limb [Title/abstract]	14.390	14.861
#8	arm [Title/abstract]	114.907	118.432
#9	X = upper extremity OR upper limb OR arm	138.934	143.201
#10	Rehabilitation [Title/abstract]	129.342	133.119

#11	Physical therapy modalities [Title/abstract]	225	245
#12	Exercise therapy [Title/abstract]	3.520	3.627
#13	X = rehabilitation OR physical therapy modalities OR exercise therapy	1.310.350	136.221
#14	Dose [Title/abstract]	946.602	966.549
#15	Amount [Title/abstract]	390.189	398.459
#16	Treatment intensity [Title/abstract]	945	987
#17	X = dose OR amount OR treatment intensity	1.313.600	1.338.137
#18	Deep brain stimulation [Title/abstract]	7.742	8.106
#19	Electro-stimulation [Title/abstract]	202	208
#20	Medication [Title/abstract]	165.741	170.867
#21	Drug [Title/abstract]	944.983	971.401

#22	NOT = deep brain stimulation OR electro- stimulation OR medication OR drug	1.083.537	1.114.319
#23	Stroke [Title/abstract] OR Cerebrovascular	135	
	accident [MeSH Terms] OR Multiple sclerosis		
	[MeSH Terms] OR cerebral palsy [MeSH Terms]		
	AND		
	upper extremity [Title/abstract] OR upper limb		
	[Title/abstract] OR arm [Title/abstract]		
	AND		
	Rehabilitation [Title/abstract] OR Physical therapy		
	modalities [Title/abstract] OR Exercise therapy		
	[Title/abstract]		
	AND		
	Dose [Title/abstract] OR Amount [Title/abstract]		
	OR Treatment intensity [Title/abstract]		
	NOT		
	Deep brain stimulation [Title/abstract] OR Electro-		
	stimulation [Title/abstract] OR Medication		
	[Title/abstract] OR Drug [Title/abstract]		
	Filter: randomized controlled trial		

Table 4: Keywords, combinations and hits in WOS

#	Keywords in the search bar	January 2017	May 2017
#1	TS=(stroke)	259.595	266.094
#2	TS=(cerebrovascular accident)	5.678	5.781
#3	TS=(multiple sclerosis)	102.529	104.754
#4	TS=(cerebral palsy)	24.988	25.569
#5	TS=(stroke OR cerebrovascular accident OR multiple sclerosis OR cerebral palsy)	381.226	394.450
#6	TS=(upper extremity)	23.937	24.521
#7	TS=(upper limb)	28.318	29.017
#8	TS=(arm)	226.704	231.718
#9	TS=(upper extremity OR upper limb OR arm)	261.192	270.097
#10	TS=(rehabiliation)	155.065	159.386
#11	TS=(physical therapy)	56.616	58.416
#12	TS=(exercise therapy)	32.381	33.206

#13	TS=(rehabilitation OR physical therapy OR exercise therapy)	220.368	260.814
#14	TS=(dose)	1.085.709	1.106.055
#15	TS=(amount)	1.080.414	1.105.346
#16	TS=(treatment intensity)	79.758	82.009
#17	TS=(dose response)	59.412	268.803
#18	TS=(dose OR amount OR treatment intensity OR dose response)	2.815.372	2.229.945
#19	TS=(RCT)	344.453	14.597
#20	TS=(deep brain stimulation)	15.326	15.748
#21	TS=(electrical stimulation)	65.365	66.287
#22	TS=(medication)	216.750	223.526
#23	TS=(drug)	1.381.223	1.414.220
#24	TS=(botulinum toxin)	18.980	19.293
#25	TS=(protocol)	502.084	516.638

#26	TS=(pilot)	197.180	202.843
#27	TS=(deep brain stimulation OR electrical stimulation OR medication OR drug OR botulinum toxin OR protocol OR pilot)	2.262.921	1.000.656
	#5 AND #9 AND #13 AND 18 AND #19 NOT #27	204	

Table 5: Overview of excluded articles and reason of exclusion

#	Reason for exclusion	Number of studies	Author and year
4	No dose comparison	127	Abdollahi et al. (2014)
1			Almhdawi et al. (2016)
			Arya et al. (2012)
			Ballinger et al. (1999)
			Bleyenheuft et al. (2015)
			Birkenmeier et al. (2010)
			Boake et al. (2007)
			Brandao et al. (2014)
			Brunner et al. (2016)
			Chang et al. (2015)
			Chatterjee et al. (2016)
			Chen et al. (2012)
			Chen et al. (2014)
			Chen et al. (2015)
			Connell et al. (2014a)
			Connell et al. (2014b)
			Connell et al. (2014c)
			Connell et al. (2016)
			Dahl et al. (2008)
			de Bode et al. (2007)
			DeJong et al. (2012)
			Donaldson et al. (2009)
			Dromerick et al. (2006)
			Dromerick et al. (2009)
			English et al. (2007)
			Fan et al (2016)
			Feys et al. (2004)
			Fleming et al. (2014)

	Fluet et al. (2015)
	Fraile et al. (2016)
	Franceschini et al. (2012)
	Gauthier et al. (2008)
	Giuffrida et al. (2008)
	Globas et al. (2011)
	Green et al. (2012)
	harris et al. (2009)
	Harris et al. (2010)
	Haworth et al. (2009)
	Hayne et al. (2010)
	Horne et al. (2015)
	Housman et al. (2009)
	Hunter et al. (2008)
	Huseyinsinoglu et al. (2012)
	Hwang et al. (2012)
	Imms et al. (2015)
	In et al. (2012)
	Ishida et al. (2011)
	James et al. (2015)
	Kitago et al. (2015)
	Krawczyk et al. (2012)
	Kwakkel et al. (1999)
	Kwakkel et al. (2002)
	Kwon et al. (2012)
	Lang et al. (2007)
	Lang et al. (2009)
	Lang et al. (2013)
	Lee et al. (2012)
	Lee et al. (2013)
	Lemmens et al. (2014)

	Li et al. (2012)
	Liao et al. (2012)
	Lima et al. (2014)
	Lin et al. (2008)
	Lin et al. (2009)
	Lin et al. (2011)
	Luft et al. (2004)
	Lum et al. (2005)
	Lum et al. (2006)
	Masiero et al. (2007)
	Masiero et al. (2014)
	Massie et al. (2009)
	McCombe Waller et al. (2008)
	McNulty et al. (2015)
	Morris et al. (2008)
	Myint et al. (2008a)
	Nef et al. (2007)
	Page et al. (2005)
	Page et al. (2011)
	Page et al. (2012)
	Page et al. (2012)
	Pang et al. (2006)
	Platz et al. (2009)
	Ploughman et al. (2008)
	Prange et al. (2015a)
	Renner et al. (2016)
	Ross et al. (2016)
	Rostami et al. (2012)
	Schaefer et al. (2013)
	Schweighofer et al. (2009)
	Severinsen et al. (2014)
	Sevick et al. (2016)

	Shim et al. (2015)
	Shin et al. (2015b)
	Shin et al. (2016)
	Slijper et al (2014)
	Smania et al. (2009)
	Smania et al. (2012)
	Subramanian et al. (2013)
	Taub et al. (2004)
	Thielbar et al. (2014)
	Timmermans et al. (2014)
	Trammell et al. (2017)
	Tyson et al. (2015)
	Underwood et al. (2006)
	van Delden et al. (2013)
	van Delden et al. (2015)
	van der Lee et al. (1999)
	van der Lee et al. (2004)
	Verbunt et al. (2008)
	Vural et al. (2016)
	Wang et al. (2013)
	Whitall et al. (2011)
	Winstein et al. (2016)
	Wolf et al. (2006)
	Wolf et al. (2009)
	Wolf et al. (2014)
	Wolf et al. (2015)
	Wolfe et al. (2000)
	Wu et al. (2007a)
	Wu et al. (2007b)
	Wu et al. (2011)
	Wu et al. (2012)

			Wu et al. (2013)
			Yates et al. (2016)
			Zondervan et al. (2015)
			Zondervan et al. (2016)
2	No chronic neurological patients	54	Azizi et al. (2014)
			Azoulav et al. (2004)
			Barakat et al. (2006)
			Brodin et al. (1990)
			The Choroidal Neovascularization Prevention Trial Research
			Group.
			(1998)
			Coviello et al. (2001)
			Crosby et al. (1993)
			Dackis et al. (2012)
			Edwards et al. (1994)
			Einsiedel et al. (2005)
			Engert et al. (2010)
			Faulhaber-Walter et al. (2009)
			Ferguson et al. (2015)
			Fey et al. (2013)
			Foley et al. (2012)
			Freyer et al. (2011)
			Fu et al. (2015)
			Gadner et al. (2008)
			Harley et al. (1979)
			Hatschek et al. (1993)
			Hendriks et al. (2011)
			Herpertz-Dahlmann et al. (2014)
			Katz et al. (2011)
			Kurtz et al. (2009)

	Le et al. (2015)
	Lennard et al. (2015)
	Leon et al. (2005)
	Long et al. (2000)
	Lysaker et al. (2009)
	Mancia et al. (2014)
	Masmiquel et al. (2016)
	Monnikes et al. (2013)
	Mouncey et al. (2015)
	Mouncey et al. (2015)
	Muench et al. (2007)
	Noll et al. (1997)
	O'Connor et al. (2014)
	Parsons et al. (2012)
	Pellegrini et al. (2014)
	Penno et al. (2013)
	Pui et al. (2009)
	Rittenhouse et al. (1990)
	Rosenblum et al. (1999)
	Ryan et al. (2006)
	Sherwood et al. (2016)
	Stergiopoulos et al. (2015)
	Thoolen et al. (2006)
	Timko et al. (2004)
	van der Werf et al. (2015)
	Van Eys et al. (1989)
	Vora et al. (2013)
	Woynaroski et al. (2014)
	Wyllie et al. (2006)
	Zandsteeg et al. (2009)

3	Electrical stimulation	6	Ackerley et al. (2016) Hsu et al. (2010) Kwakkel et al. (2015) Rofes et al. (2013) Shen et al. (2015) Shindo et al. (2011)
4	Studies which use medication	3	Meythaler et al. (1999) Nadeau et al. (2004) Schuster et al. (2011)
5	No rehabilitation of the upper extremity	13	Alterman et al. (2001) Baumgaertner et al. (2013) Braun et al. (2007) Britton et al. (2008) English et al. (2015) Godecke et al. (2015) Harvey et al. (2016) Harvey et al. (2011) Lindgren et al. (2012) Lohse et al. (2016) Morone et al. (2014) Page et al. (2007) Tang et al. (2014) van Vliet et al. (2005)
6	Use of botulinum toxin as a therapy	4	Gracies et al. (2014) Kaji et al. (2010) Meythaler et al. (2009) Wolf et al. (2012)
7	Not an RCT	80	Albert et al. (2012) Anttila et al. (2008) Brauer et al. (2013) Breceda et al. (2013)
	Brosseau et al. (2006)		
--	-----------------------------		
	Brunner et al. (2014)		
	Byl et al. (2008)		
	Casadio et al. (2013)		
	Chang et al. (2013)		
	Chiu et al. (2016)		
	Ciccone et al. (2013)		
	Cooke et al. (2010)		
	Dennis et al. (2012)		
	Dobkin et al. (2007)		
	Dobkin et al. (2009)		
	Farmer et al. (2014)		
	Foley et al. (2012)		
	Forrester et al. (2008)		
	French et al. (2007)		
	French et al. (2008)		
	Galvin et al. (2008)		
	Hammer et al. (2009)		
	Hayward et al. (2014)		
	Hillier et al. (2011)		
	Hsieh et al. (2011)		
	Iruthayarajah et al. (2017)		
	Knols et al. (2016)		
	Kwakkel et al. (2004)		
	Kwakkel et al. (2006)		
	Kwakkel et al. (2015)		
	Lang et al. (2015)		
	Langhorne et al. (2009)		
	Laver et al. (2011)		
	Laver et al. (2015)		
	Lima et al. (2014)		
	Linder et al. (2013)		

	Marchal-Crespo et al. (2009)
	McIntyre et al. (2012)
	Mehrholz et al. (2008)
	Mehrholz et al. (2012a)
	Mehrholz et al. (2012b)
	Motl et al. (2013)
	Nijland et al. (2011)
	Norouzi-Gheidari et al. (2012)
	Rand et al. (2015)
	Page et al. (2004)
	Page et al. (2005)
	Pidcock et al. (2009)
	Pinter et al. (2012)
	Platz et al. (2003)
	Pollock et al. (2014)
	Pomeroy et al. (2005)
	Pomeroy et al. (2006)
	Puh et al. (2013)
	Rabadi et al. (2011)
	Reid et al. (2015)
	Schneider et al. (2016)
	Scrivener et al. (2015)
	Sheehan et al. (2006)
	Sheehy et al. (2016)
	Shi et al. (2011)
	Siegert et al. (2004)
	Sirtori et al. (2009)
	Sivan et al. (2014)
	Stevenson et al. (2012)
	Teasell et al. (2004)
	Teasell et al. (2006)
	Thrane et al. (2014)

			Timmermans et al. (2010)
			Toh et al. (2012)
			van Delden et al. (2012)
			van der Lee et al. (2001)
			Vinas-Diz et al. (2016)
			Vloothuis et al. (2016)
			Winstein et al. (2013)
			Winstein et al. (2016)
			Wolf et al. (2014)
			Wu et al. (2012)
			Yoo et al. (2016)
			Zimmermann-Schlatter et al. (2008)
	Articles in	2	Eazekas at al. (2016)
8	another	2	Pazerkas et al. (2010)
	English		

Table 6: Cochrane checklist for quality assessment

	Score						Cochrane o	checklist ite	ms			
Author and year		design	Item 1	Item 2	Item 3	Item 4	Item 5	Item 6	Item 7	Item 8	Item 9	Item 10
Burgar et al. (2011)	4/10	RCT	Y	U	N	Y	U	U	U	Y	U	Y
Dromerick etl. (2009)	5/10	RCT	Y	U	N	Y	Y	Y	U	Y	U	U
Han et al. (2013)	8/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	U	Y
Hsieh et al. (2012)	7/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	U	U
Hunter et al. (2011)	6/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	U	Y	U	Y	U	Y
Lang et al. (2016)	7/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	Y	U	U	Y
Lincoln et al. (1999)	5/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	U	U/N	U	U
Parry et al. (1999)	4/10	RCT	Y	U	N	Y	U	N/U	U	Y	U	U
Rodgers et al. (2003)	5/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	U	U	U	U
Ross et al. (2009)	8/10	RCT	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	Y	U	Y	Y
Sunderland et al.(1992)	5/10	RCT	Y	U	N	Y	Y	Y	U	Y	U	U

Item 1: Was the application of the patients to the intervention randomized?

Item 2: Was the person who randomised the patients blinded?

Item 3: Were the patients and the therapist blinded for the intervention?

Item 4: Were the outcome assessors blinded for treatment?

Item 5: Were the groups at baseline comparable?

if the answer was no: Was this corrected in the analyzes?

Item 6: Was there a complete follow-up available from a sufficient proportion of included patients?

if the answer was no: could selective loss to follow-up be / have been excluded?

Item 7: Were all the included patients analysed in the group in which they were randomised?

Item 8: Were the groups treated the same way, except for the intervention.?

Item 9: Was selective publication of results sufficiently excluded?

Item 10: Was undesirable influence of sponsoring sufficiently excluded?

Table 7: description of the interventions in the included articles

Author and year	Treatment of the intervention group(s)	Treatment of the control group
Burgar et al. (2011)	- High robot assisted group: received 30 one-hour	The control group received 15 hours of additional conventional
	sessions over a 3-week period of the mirror image	therapy in addition to usual care.
	movement enabler (MIME) device	The 5-minute preparatory and terminal segments of each session
	- Low robot assisted group: received 15 one-hour therapy	were identical in all three groups.
	sessions over a 3-week period of the mirror image	
	movement enabler (MIME) device	
	The MIME consisted of four modes. Three modes	
	stimulated unilateral reaching tasks and one mode	
	stimulated bimanual tasks training. Tasks were	
	progressively made more difficult. The tasks went from a	
	passive to a more active-assisted approach.	
Dromerick et al. (2009)	- Standard constraint induced movement therapy (CIMT):	The control group received five days/week for two weeks traditional
	consisted of two hours of sham therapy and the patients	occupational therapy:
	wore a padded constraint mitten for six hours a day.	- 1 hour of ADL training
	- High intensity CIMT: received two hours sham therapy,	- ROM training
	but they wore the padded constraint mitten for 90% of	- Strength training
	waking hours.	 1 hour of upper extremity bilateral training
	The intervention duration was five days/week for two	
	weeks.	
Han et al. (2013)	All patients received regular rehabilitation therapy and	No control group was used.
	medical treatment. The content of the arm treatment was	
	determined by a motor relearning program.	
	- Group A received one hour of arm treatment a day	
	- Group B received two hours of arm treatment a day	
	- Group C received three hours of arm treatment a day.	
	They were treated for five days a week for a period of six	
	weeks.	
	The arm training included correct positioning and caring of	
	the arm, passive, assisted and active movements,	
	strength training and practice of functional activities.	
Hsieh et al. (2012)	- High-intensity robot assisted therapy group practiced	The control group received an intensive therapist administered
	600 to 800 repetitions of mode 1 and 2 for 15 to 20	control therapy matched in duration. Occupational therapy
	minutes and 150 to 200 repetitions of mode 3 for 3 to 5	techniques included: neuro-development treatment, strength
	minutes.	training, fine-motor training and functional task training.

	- Low intensity robot assisted therapy group practiced 300	
	to 400 repetitions of mode 1 and 2 for 15 to 20 minutes	
	and 75 to 100 repetitions of mode 3 for 3 to 5 minutes	
	Patients in the intervention groups practiced with the BI-	
	Manu-Track The BI-Manu-Track allows two movements	
	patterns, forearm pronation-supination and wrist flexion-	
	extension. There are three modes in the device. A passive	
	(mode 1), active-passive (mode 2) and an active-active	
	mode (mode 3). Before the patients started to exercise in	
	the intervention group, a warm-up was done for 5 minutes.	
	After the training, patients received 15 to 20 minutes of	
	functional activities training.	
	The therapy was given five days a week for 4 weeks.	
Hunter et al. (2011)	All of the experimental groups received mobilization and	The control group received conventional physical therapy with no
	tactile stimulation (MTS) therapy in a different dose. MTS-	additional treatments spread over 14 days.
	therapy consisted of the provision of tactile and	
	proprioceptive stimulation through actions such as guided	
	sensory exploration, massage, passive joint/soft-tissue	
	mobilization techniques, active-assisted movement and	
	active movements where possible.	
	-Group 2 received 30 minutes per day spread over 14	
	days in addition with conventional therapy	
	-Group 3 received 60 minutes per day spread over 14	
	days in addition with conventional therapy	
	-Group 4 received 120 minutes per day spread over 14	
	days in addition with conventional therapy	
Lang et al. (2016)	The patients were divided into four groups of task-specific	No control group was used.
	upper limb training. The patients practiced functional	
	exercises. The exercises consisted of four components:	
	reaching, grasping, moving/manipulating and releasing an	
	object.	
	- Group 1 received a maximum of 100 repetitions during	
	1-hour sessions	
	- Group 2 received a maximum of 200 repetitions during	
	1-hour sessions	
	- Group 3 received a maximum of 300 repetitions during	
	1-hour sessions	
	- Group 4 received individualized maximum (IM)	
	repetitions during 1-hour sessions	

Lincoln et al. (1999)	 The patients in the intervention group received two hours of additional therapy per week. The qualified-physiotherapist (QPT) group received standard physiotherapy and 2-hours/week additional therapy by a senior research physiotherapist. The assistant-physiotherapist (APT) group received standard physiotherapy and 2-hours/week additional therapy by a physiotherapist assistant. The routine-physiotherapist group received standard physiotherapist group received standard physiotherapist group received standard physiotherapist group received standard physiotherapist group received standard physiotherapy which included Bobath therapy for 30-45 minutes a day. 	No control group was used.
Parry et al. (1999)	 The qualified physiotherapist group received 10 additional treatment hours from a qualified physiotherapist spread over 5 weeks. The assistant physiotherapist group received 10 additional treatment hours from a trained assistant spread over 5 weeks. The routine physiotherapist group received no additional physiotherapy. The intervention was based on the Bobath approach 	No control group was used.
Rodgers et al. (2003)	Patients in the intervention group received stroke unit care plus 30 minutes of enhanced upper limb rehabilitation five days/week for six weeks.	The control group received stroke unit care.
Ross et al. (2009)	The experimental group received an additional one-hour session of task-specific motor training for the hand and included repetitive practice of tasks which were individualized to the functional goals of each patient five times a week over a six-week period. Usual arm care consisted of half an hour of motor training for the shoulder and elbow five times a week.	The control group received standard care and 10 minutes of hand therapy three times a week.
Sunderland et al. (1992)	The therapy used in the intervention group consisted of Bobath therapy, EMG biofeedback, micro-computer games, goal-setting and behavioural methods to encourage the patient to use the affected arm. The intervention group received a median of 51 minutes of arm therapy per week.	The control group followed a median of 21 minutes of arm therapy per week.

Table 8: Strengths and limitations of the included articles

Author and year	Strengths	Limitations
Burgar et al. (2011)	 Random group allocation Outcome raters were blinded Therapists were blinded Project staff was trained before the study took place Comparable baseline measurements with exception of age Use of different doses Follow-up (six months) 	 Due to significant differences in age, outcomes can be affected It is possible that subjects did not remain blinded Relatively small sample Variation in severity level Overlap in dose between high intensity group and low intensity group No clear difference between high- and low-dose groups High drop-out rate after six months follow-up
Dromerick et al. (2009)	 Random group allocation Rater blinding Sample size (n = 52) Trained raters Comparable baseline measurements Use of protocols Use of different doses Follow-up (14 days and three months after intervention) 	 Possibility of overtraining Blocked practice schedule Extra time spent by the high-intensity CIMT group may have interfered with motor learning
Han et al. (2013)	 Random group allocation Assessor blinding Measurement of motor function and activities of daily living Follow-up (two weeks, four weeks, and six weeks after intervention) Comparable baseline measurements Use of different doses 	 Small sample size No measurements immediately after treatment No long-term study Same intensity of ADL-training in all groups
Hsieh et al. (2012)	 Random group allocation Rater blinding Sample size (n = 54) Follow-up Use of a protocol Comparable baseline measurements Use of different doses 	 Unclear when follow-up took place No evaluation of sensory function No blinding of participants and intervention providers Only one intermediate assessment was conducted

Hunter et al. (2011)	 Random group allocation Assessor blinding Comparable baseline measurements The study used multiple groups with different doses. Group allocation done by an independent researcher Measurements batteries for ICF-function and activity level. 	 There is no comparison in outcome between the intervention groups The sample was relative small (possibility underpowered) Delivered less rehabilitation time in the intervention groups than expected. Only two outcome measurements (ARAT and MI) ARAT possibly unsuitable to evaluate effectiveness of different approaches to stroke rehabilitation No follow-up
Lang et al. (2016)	 Random group allocation Assessor blinding Comparable baseline measurements Group allocation done by a computer program Follow-up (two months) The study used multiple groups with different doses. 	 No measurements on ICF function level ARAT possibly unsuitable to evaluate effectiveness of different approaches to stroke rehabilitation
Lincoln et al. (1999)	 Assessor blinding Group allocation done by a computer program Comparable baseline measurements Random group allocation Measurements batteries for ICF-function and activity level. Follow-up (three and six months) 	 About half of the QPT and APT patients did not complete 10 hours of additional treatment The intensity of the extra therapy was possibly too low. The sample size may have been insufficient to detect small but statistically significant changes. ARAT possibly unsuitable to evaluate effectiveness of different approaches to stroke rehabilitation
Rodgers et al. (2003)	 Random group allocation Assessor blinding Comparable baseline measurements Follow-up (3 and 6 months after stroke) Measurements batteries for ICF- function and activity level. Randomization was done by an independent telephone computerized service Measurements batteries for ICF function and activity level. Divided patients in different groups according to arm function 	 The control group received more unidisciplinary rehabilitation and more therapy assistant time. This can lead to a competitive therapy bias. ARAT possibly unsuitable to evaluate effectiveness of different approaches to stroke rehabilitation The intensity of the extra therapy was possibly too low A total of 150 hours (2.5 per patient) were not given due to illness or patients declining during the intervention period The provision of the intervention by a single physiotherapist and a single occupational therapist reduces the generalizability of the results.
Ross et al. (2009)	- Random group allocation - Assessor blinding	- The intervention focused specifically on hand training

	 Comparable baseline measurements Measurements batteries for ICF function and activity level. Group allocation done by a computer program 	 ARAT possibly unsuitable to evaluate effectiveness of different approaches to stroke rehabilitation The standard care provided already half an hour motor training for the shoulder and elbow five times a week. No follow-up A much larger sample size than estimated was required to provide a definitive answer to the research question.
Parry et al. (1999)	 Random group allocation Assessor blinding Divided patients in two groups (severe and less severe) according to their score on the RMA arm scale Measurements batteries for ICF function and activity level. 	 Unclear if baseline outcome measurements where the same in the groups No table of biographical characteristics and pre-intervention motor outcomes. The method used for randomization is unknown The study used older techniques of upper limb rehabilitation (Bobath) Unclear if the sample (n=186) was large enough to detect small significant changes (not mentioned in article) Only half of the patients tolerated all the additional rehabilitation No follow up ARAT possibly unsuitable to evaluate effectiveness of different approaches to stroke rehabilitation
Sunderland et al. (1992)	 Random group allocation Assessor blinding Comparable baseline measurements Divided patients in different groups according to arm function Measurements batteries for ICF-function and activity level 	 The study used older techniques of upper limb rehabilitation (Bobath and Johnstone) It is unknown if the person who randomly allocated the patients was aware of the randomization order. The control group received addional physiotherapy every week. The study needed 160 patients to have a 90% chance of detecting a 20% improvement in outcome. The study only included 132 patients. Unknown how much therapy was given each day. No follow up

Table 9: Overview of the study characteristics and outcome measures of the included articles

Author and	Study design	Study	population		Aim of the study	(Dutcome measure	
year		Details	Baseline	n		F	Α	Other
Burgar et al. (2011)	RCT	Acute stroke Days post stroke: Robot-Lo 17.3 ± 2.7 Robot-Hi 16.6 ± 2.4 Control 10.6 ± 1.2	/	54	To evaluate whether MIME could facilitate similar or greater motor recovery as the same amount of early hands-on therapy.	FMA Motor Power Ashworth	FIM WMFT FIM	1
					to assess the dose- response effect of RA upper-limb therapy which had not previously been reported.			
Dromerick et al. (2009)	RCT	Acute stroke Time post stroke: 9,7 ± 4,6 Stroke type: 77% ischemic	Mean: Control: 19,7 ± 13,9 Low CIMT: 22,7 ± 14,3 High CIMT: 25,4 ± 18,0	52	To examine whether CIMT was superior to an equivalent amount of traditional occupational therapy To examine whether CIMT treatment effects would be dose dependent	NIHSS Wong-Baker Faces scale SIS	ARAT FIM	Geriatric depression -15 scale
Han et al. (2013)	RCT	Subacute stroke Stroke type: infarction or hemorrhage	Mean: Group A: 0.80 ± 1.14 Group B: 1.50 ± 1.58 Group C: 1.10 ± 1.52	32	To investigate the effects of different intensities of arm rehabilitation training on the functional recovery of hemiplegic upper extremity.	FMA	ARAT Barthel Index	1
Hsieh et al. (2012)	RCT	Chronic stroke (>6 months)	1	54	To examine the treatment effects of two different RT	FMA distal score FMA proximal score	Motor activity log SIS-ADL	/

		Months post stroke: High RT group 28.67m ± 13.67m Low RT group 23.28m ± 15.37m Control group 22.44m ± 15.34m Stroke type: Ischemic, hemorrhagic or subarachnoid			intensities and the effect on outcomes of the severity of initial motor deficits.	MRC SIS-strenth SIS-mobility SIS-hand function MAL-QOM MAL-AOU		
Hunter et al. (2011)	RCT	Acute/subacute Days since stroke: NO MTS (Mean): 29.4 (15.2) MTS 30 min (Mean): 35.6 (23.6) MTS 60 min (Mean): 25.7 (16.4) MTS 120 min (Mean): 28.3 (19.5) stroke subtype: ICH, LACI, PACI, TACI, missing data. -stroke type: Infarct or hemorrhage	ARAT median: No MTS: 0 (0-3) MTS 30 min: 0(0-0) MTS 60 min: 0(0-19) MTS 120 min: 0(0-6.5)		The authors aimed to find the most effective and feasible dose of mobilisation and tactile stimulation.		-MI upper limb -ARAT	-Adverse events
Lang et al. (2016)	RCT	chronic stroke (>6 months) Months past stroke: 100 repetitions: 12 200 repetitions: 13 300 repetitions: 13 IM: 11.5 stroke locations:	Mean: 100 repetitions group: 33.7 ± 7.9 200 repetitions: 31.0 ± 13.4 300 repetitions: 32.1 ± 12.3 IM group:	81	The objectives of this work were to (1) determine whether higher doses of motor therapy in chronic post-stroke hemiparesis result in better outcomes compared to lower doses, and (2) evaluate potential	-SIS	-ARAT	-COPM -7-point likert scale

		Corical, subcortical, cortical and subcortical, post. Circ. and unknown stroke type: Ischemic, hemorrhage.	31.6 ±10.3		modifiers of the dose- response relationship.			
Lincoln et al. (1999)	RCT	acute/subacute Days after stroke (median): 12 (9-17) stroke subtype: TACI, PACI, LACI, POCI, Uncertain.	Median: RPT group: 0 QPT group: 0 APT group: 0	282	To determine wheter increasing the amount of physiotherapy early after stroke improved the recovery of arm function and to compare the effects of this therapy when administered by a qualified therapist or a trained, supervised assistant.	-Grip strength	-THPT -Barthel index -ARAT -Extended ADL scale -RMA gross function scale -RMA	
Parry et al. (1999)	RCT	acute/subacute patients: 1-5 week after stroke	1	186	To investigate effect of iniatial severity of arm impairment on response to additional physiotherapy for the arm after stroke.	-MAS	-ARAT -Barthel index -RMA -extended ADL scale	-Ritchie articular index -self-rating scale for pain
Rodgers et al. (2003)	RCT (pragmatic single center radomized controlled trial)	Acute stroke Days post stroke: Control (median): 5 (3-5) Intervention (median) 5 (3-8) Stroke subtype: TACS, PACS, LACS, POCS. Stroke type: Infract, haemorrhage and not known.	Median: Control group: 0 (0-45) Intervention group: 6(0-41)	96	To determine whether an early increased- intensity upper limb therapy programme following acute stroke improves outcome.	-MI upper limb function	-Barthel index -ARAT -Frenchay arm test -OHS - Nottingham E-ADL	-cost to health and social services

		severe stroke (Arat=0) and mild/moderate stroke (ARAT >0)						
Ross et al. (2009)	RCT	patients were acute/subacute (n<3 months) and chronic (n>3 months) Months post stroke: Control (Median): 0.7 Experimental (Median): 2.3 months stroke type: Infarct Hemorrhage Stroke subtype: TAC, POC, PAC, LAC	Mean: Control group: 10 (14) Intervention group: 10(15)	37	To determine the benefits of additional therapy specifically directed at the hand in people with acquired brain impairment	-SMMT -The test of passive extensibility of the long finger flexor muscles	-ARAT -WMFT	-DSAHA -COPM
Sunderland et al. (1992)	RCT	acute stroke: Time past stroke unknown	1		To compare orhodox therapy with an enhanced therapeutic regime which increases the amount of therapy for the arm and uses behavioral methods to encourage active learning during treatment sessions	-EMI -Sub-test for the MCA -Resistance to passive movement -sensory loss in terms of response to light touch	-Frenchay arm test -NHPT -Barhel index	-paint on passive movement

Table 10.1 Overview of the effects after intervention: 1 intervention group vs. 1 control group

		Control group (1)			Intervention group (2)			1 vs 2
	Outcome measures	Pre	Post	Change	Pre	Post	Change	P-value
Rodgers (2003)	ARAT (Median IQR)	0 (0-45)	54 (1-57)	/	6 (0-41)	53 (20-57)	/	0.548
	Upper limb MI (Median IQR)	55 (14-77)	78 (51-100)	/	61 (15-81)	85 (65-92)	/	0.693
	FAT (Median IQR)	0 (0-3)	4 (0-5)	/	0 (0-2)	4 (2-5)	/	0.236
	BI	9 (6-14	17 (10-19)	1	8 (6-13)	17 (8-19)	/	0.580
Ross (2009)	ARAT Mean (SD)	10 (14)	24 (26)	17 (23)	10 (15)	21 (23)	11 (16)	0.371
	SMMT Mean (SD)	44 (36)	50 (37)	10 (21)	35 (33)	49 (35)	14 (17)	0.651
	WMFT Mean (SD)	1.7 (1.3)	2.3 (1.5)	0.8 (1.5)	1.3 (1.2)	2.3 (1.5)	1.1 (1.1)	1
	Finger flexion (degrees) Mean (SD)	68 (18)	61 (18)	0 (22)	67 (11)	62 (17)	-5 (13)	/
	DSAHA Mean (SD)	48 (16)	33 (15)	14 (23)	55 (21)	42 (19)	13 (19)	/
	COPM Mean (SD)	3.0 (1.7)	5.4 (2.9)	2.6 (2.2)	2.7 (1.7)	5.4 (1.9)	2.5 (1.9)	/
Sunderland (1992)	BI (Median, range) ¹	7 (2-19)	16 (7-20)	1	7 (2-20)	17 (2-20)	/	/
	Extended MI (Median, range)	9 (0-58)	1	/	0 (0-37)	/	/	1
	NHPT (Median, range)	0 (0)	/	/	0 (0)	/	/	/
	FAT (Median, range)	0 (0)	/	1	0 (0)	/	/	/
	BI (Median, range) ²	12 (6-20)	19 (13-20)	/	13 (2-20)	20 (7-20)	/	/
	Extended MI (Median, range)	66 (34-91)	/	/	67 (30-96)	1	/	/
	NHPT (Median, range)	0.05 (0-0.39)	1	/	0.08 (0-0.38)	/	/	/
	FAT (Median, range)	2 (1-5)	/	/	4 (1-5)	/	1	/

¹ Severe sub-group ² Mild sub-group

Table 10.2 Overview of the effects after intervention: 2 intervention groups vs. 1 control group

		Control group		Intervention group 1 ³		Intervention group 2 ⁴		<u>.</u>	
	Outcome measures	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	BG-difference ⁵	
Burgar (2011)	FM Mean (SD)	24.2 ± 4.8	14.0 ± 3.6	26.7 ± 5.0	6.8 ± 1.9	19.1 ± 3.7	14.4 ± 3.6	0.47	
	FIM Mean (SD)	26.9 ± 2.0	15.9 ± 1.5	28.4 ± 2.6	17.7 ± 1.9	27.9 ± 1.7	21.5 ± 2.1	0.04 ⁶	
	Motor Power Mean (SD)	24.9 ± 4.2	15.4 ± 3.7	27.9 ± 4.8	13.7 ± 2.3	21.5 ± 4.2	16.0 ± 3.0	0.86	
	Ashworth Mean (SD)	0.33 ± 0.08	0.11 ± 0.10	0.44 ± 0.10	0.0 ± 0.06	0.31 ± 0.08	0.19 ± 0.09	0.15	
	WMFT FAS (Mean ± SD)	1.1 ± 0.4	1.2 ± 0.3	1.6 ± 0.4	0.7 ± 0.2	1.0 ± 0.3	0.9 ± 0.3 -29.8 ±	0.75	
	WMFT MT (Mean ± SD)	88 ± 18	-34.4 ± 18.0	81 ± 19	-16.8 ± 19.0	85 ± 17	17.0	0.65	
Dramariak (2000)	APAT total (Maan + SD)	10.65 ± 2.72	26 20 ± 4.05	22.68 ±	42 10 + 2 82	25.43 ±	33.93 ±	,	
DIOMETICK (2009)	ARAT total (Mean \pm SD)	19.05 ± 3.73	30.20 ± 4.05 8 32 + 0.87	5.02	42.10 ± 3.02 0.31 + 0.81	5.04 5.10 ± 0.00	4.10	1	
	ARAT pinch (Mean \pm SD)	2.94 ± 1.26	7.62 ± 1.68	4.73 ± 1.19	10.58 ± 1.58	6.37 ± 1.30	8.75 ± 1.72 11.56 ±	/	
	ARAT grasp (Mean ± SD)	7.11 ± 1.34	13.53 ± 1.40	7.31 ± 1.27	14.21 ± 1.32	8.56 ± 1.38	1.43	1	
	ARAT gross motor (Mean ± SD)	4.88 ± 0.62	7.00 ± 0.54	5.53 ± 0.58 22.73 ±	7.79 ± 0.50	5.31 ± 0.64 23.69 ±	6.19 ± 0.55 26.93 ±	1	
	FIM upper extremity (Mean ± SD)	22.88 ± 1.22	30.23 ± 1.17	1.15	30.21 ± 1.11	1.26	1.21 44.33 ±	1	
	SIS (Mean ± SD)	/	59.71 ± 6.21	1	45.26 ± 5.87	/	6.61	0.02	
Hsieh (2012)	FMA total (Mean ± SD)	44.61 ± 11.06	47.56 ± 10.50	43.11 ± 9.18	46.33 ± 10.27	42.78 ± 8.86	48.00 ± 8.22	1	

³ Low dose intervention group
 ⁴ High dose intervention group
 ⁵ Between group difference, post intervention

⁶ Robot-high > Control

				11.44 ±		12.56 ±	15.17 ±	
	FMA distal score (Mean ± SD)	13.39 ± 7.65	14.72 ± 7.51	6.81	13.06 ± 7.53	6.17	5.93	/
		04.00 + 4.00	00.00 + 4.05	31.67 ±	00.00 + 0.70	30.22 ±	32.83 ±	,
	FMA proximal score (Mean ± SD)	31.22 ± 4.60	32.83 ± 4.25	3.96	33.28 ± 3.72	4.01	3.62	/
Lincoln (1999)	RMA arm (Median)	1	4	1	3	1	3	0.69
		0	5	0	1	0	1	0.55
		0	5	0	1	0	1	0.00
	BI (Median)	1	13	6	12	6	12	0.65
	EADL (Median)	/	7.5	/	5	/	6	0.65
	RMA gross function (Median)	1	5	1	3	1	2	0.61
	THPT (Median)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.75
	Maximum grip (Median)	0	11	0	0	0	6	0.88
Parry (1999)	BI (Median) ⁷	1	11	/	10	/	11	0.74
	EADL (Median)	/	6	/	5	/	4	0.26
	RMA arm (Median)	/	1	1	1	/	1	> 0.99
	ARAT (Median)	1	0	/	0	/	0	0.86
	BI (Median) ⁸	1	16	/	17	/	14	0.31
	EADL (Median)	/	10	/	14	/	9	0.89
	RMA arm (Median)	/	8	/	9	/	9	0.07
	ARAT (Median)	/	38	1	45	/	37	0.07

⁷ More severe patients ⁸ Less severe patients

Table 10.3 Overview of the effects after intervention: 3 intervention groups vs. 1 control group

		Contro	ol group	Interventio	on group 1 ⁹	Interventio	n group 2 ¹⁰	Intervention	n group 3 ¹¹	
	Outcome measures	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	BG Difference ¹²
Hunter (2011)	ARAT Median (IQR)	0 (0-3)	0 (19)	0 (0-0)	0 (12)	0 (0-19)	0 (14)	0 (0-6.5)	0 (19.5)	/
	MI Median (IQR)	10 (1-40)	8 (22)	5.5 (1-35)	3 (23)	12.0 (1-40)	16 (29)	12.5 (1-42)	10.5 (27.5)	/
Lang (2016)	ARAT Mean ± SD	31.6±10.3	1	33.7 ± 7.9	/	31.0 ± 12.3	/	32.1 ± 12.3	/	1
	SIS-ADL (Mean ± SD)	65.4 ± 4.5	70.1 ± 5.2	58.0 ± 4.4	66.2 ± 5.0	61.5 ± 4.3	69.0 ± 5.1	67.8 ± 4.4	75.3 ± 5.4	0.42
	SIS-hf (Mean ± SD)	44.0 ± 5.5	55.5 ± 6.3	46.4 ± 5.3	55.6 ± 6.01	41.7 ± 5.2	51.7 ± 6.2	56.1 ± 5.3	62.7 ± 6.5	0.24
	COPM-p (Mean ± SD)	3.0 ± 0.3	5.6 ± 0.5	2.7 ± 0.3	5.4 ± 0.4	3.0 ± 0.3	5.3 ± 0.4	3.4 ± 0.3	6.0 ± 0.5	0.43
	COPM-s (Mean ± SD)	2.1 ± 0.3	5.1 ± 0.5	2.2 ± 0.3	5.5 ± 0.5	2.5 ± 0.3	5.4 ± 0.5	1.8 ± 0.3	5.5 ± 0.5	0.49

 ⁹ Low dose intervention group
 ¹⁰ Moderate dose intervention group
 ¹¹ High dose intervention group
 ¹² Between group difference, post intervention

Table 10.4 Overview of the effects after intervention: 3 intervention group vs. no control group

		Intervention group 1		Intervention group 2		Intervention group 3		
Han (2012)	Outcome measures	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	BG difference ¹³
	FMA (Mean ± SD)	6.70 ± 2.26	7.80 ± 2.90	8.20 ± 3.43	12.30 ± 6.55	6.50 ± 3.06	12.40 ± 5.50	0.098
	ARAT (Mean ± SD)	0.80 ± 1.14	1.90 ± 2.33	1.50 ± 1.58	3.50 ± 3.47	1.10 ± 1.52	4.60 ± 3.27	0.160
	BI (Mean ± SD)	51.50 ± 22.49	61.00 ± 20.11	62.50 ± 20.98	71.00 ± 19.97	50.50 ± 23.33	67.50 ± 21.25	0.548

¹³ Between group difference, post intervention

Table 11: training parameters intervention group

Author, title and	Author, title and Dose					Total therapy	
year	Intensity	Frequency (d/w)	Session duration (Min)	Duration of intervention (weeks)	— sessions	hours	
Burgar et al. (2011)	/	5 5	±30 ±32	3	30 15	15.8±2.2 8.6±0.7	
Dromerick et al. (2009)	-2 hours of therapy and 6 hours of constrainment -3 hours of therapy and 90% of waking hours constrainment	5 5	120 180	2	10 10	80 220	
Han et al. (2013)	/	5 5 5	60 120 180	6	6 12 18	6 12 18	
Hsieh et al. (2012)	-600-800 repetitions of mode 1 and 2 150-200 repetitions of mode 3 -300-400 repetitions of mode 1 and 2 75-100 repetitions of mode 3	5	90-105 90-105	4	20 20	30-35 30-35	
Hunter et al. (2011)	1	5 5 5	30 60 120	2	10	7 14 28	
Lang et al. (2016)	-group 1 did 100 repetitions each session -group 2 did 200 repetitions each session -group 3 did 300 repetitions each session	4 4 4 4	±26.25 ±37.5 ±48.75 ±55	8	32 32 32 36	13.6 20 26.3 32.8	

	-group 4 continued repetitions each session till meeting stopping criteria					
Lincoln et al. (1999)	1	5 5	U	5	25	± 9.58 additional therapy ±7.1 additional therapy
Parry et al; (1999)	1	U	U	5	U	U
Rodger et al. (2003)		5	30 minutes additional treatment time each session for the upper limb	6	30	U
Ross et al. (2009)	/	5	60	6	30	30
Sunderland et al. (1992)	1	U	U	24	U	±72

Table 12: training parameters control group

Author, title and		Dos		Total number of	Total therapy	
year	Intensity	Frequency (d/w)	Session duration (min)	Duration of intervention (weeks)	sessions	hours
Burgar et al. (2011)	/	5	± 36	3	15	9.4±0.7
Dromerick et al. (2009)	1	5	120	2	10	20 hours
Han et al. (2013)	/	1	1	1	1	1
Hsieh et al. (2012)	/	5	90-105	4	20	30-35
Hunter et al. (2011)	/	1	1	1	1	1
Lang et al. (2016)	/	1	/	1	/	/
Lincoln et al. (1999)	/	5	30-45	5	25	12.5-18.75
Parry et al; (1999)	/	U	U	5	U	U
Rodger et al. (2003)	/	5	U	6	30	U
Ross et al. (2009)	/	3	10	5	15	150
Sunderland et al. (1992)	1	U	U	24	U	± 29.6

PART 2 - RESEARCH PROTOCOL

1. Introduction Master Thesis part 2

Stroke is a common disorder that effects a large amount of people in the world. In 2013, there were almost 25.7 million stroke survivors and 6.5 million deaths from stroke worldwide. There is a statistically significant increase in disability adjusted life years (DALY's) in ischemic and hemorrhage stroke survivors [14]. The costs of these stroke patients are high. More than 3% of the Dutch annual healthcare budget is spent on patients suffering from cerebrovascular disorders [8]. The incidence of stroke increases with age.

Of the patients who survive stroke circa 40% have hemiparesis six months later with a large impact on their activities of daily living and upper limb function [33]. Causes of these disabilities are largely determined by the severity of spasticity, muscle weakness, and loss of sensation [34]. To minimize these disabilities, a good rehabilitation is needed.

There is a broad range of rehabilitation strategies used after stroke such as positioning of the affected arm, strength training, virtual reality training, robot-assisted training, task-specific training, Bobath concept, constraint induced movement therapy...

That last one, constraint induced movement therapy (CIMT), has been studied more recently [7,24]. The main characteristic of CIMT is that the patient is forced to use their affected arm for several hours during the day [21].

There are three different types of CIMT: (1) the traditional CIMT, (2) forced use therapy, and (3) Modified CIMT (mCIMT). (1) The traditional CIMT consists of three important items. Firstly, it contains task-oriented practice of the affected arm for up to six hours each day for a minimum of two consecutive weeks. Secondly, activities are not only trained in a rehabilitation context as a transfer is made to the ADL of the patient. And thirdly, the unaffected arm of the patient is constrained for 90% of the waking hours, so the patient is forced to use the affected arm during the day [21]. (3) mCIMT consists of less hours of therapy and constrainment of the affected arm [3,21,22,23,30] mCIMT can range from 30 min - 6 hours of task-oriented training of the affected arm for 3-5 times a week. The constrainment of the unaffected arm ranges from 2 up to 6 hours of therapy spread over 2-10 weeks [24,30]. (2) In forced used therapy, the patient's unaffected arm is immobilized by a sling or resting splint. The patient wears the sling at least 90% of the waking hours. No additional task-specific therapy is given by the therapist [3].

A recent systematic review found a general small significant improvement on upper extremity function scales like the Fugl meyer assessment (FMA) and the Wolf motor function test (WMFT) in stroke

patients in favor of CIMT [7]. Another systematic review found that CIMT for six hours five times a week spread over 2 weeks leads to faster use of the affected arm in daily activities [24]. These two systematic reviews included stroke patients in different stages of rehabilitation (acute, subacute and chronic patients). On the other hand, articles that only focused on a specific stage of rehabilitation like, for example, the chronic stage also found significant improvement of the upper limb in favor of CIMT therapy. They found a significant improvement of the ARAT, Motor activity log (MAL) and the use of the affected upper limb [18]. However, the large heterogeneity of patients makes it difficult to find significant improvements. There is also a large variance of quality in the included articles, which makes it difficult to interpret the results [3].

However, CIMT interventions are time consuming, mCIMT seems as good as or even better than traditional CIMT therapy. Shi et al. (2011) found significant improvements for the FMA and ARAT-scores in favor of the intervention group which received mCIMT, compared with the traditional CIMT [27]. Peurala et al. (2011) [24] found that 2-6 hours of mCIMT practices, spread over 2 weeks, increased the hand mobility compared with control treatment. Even mCIMT for 30 minutes till one hour three times a week for 10 weeks, increased the hand mobility compared with no treatment or control treatment. mCIMT can improve the ability to use the paretic hand [24]. However, most of the intervention groups that found significant improvements in upper limb function in favor of mCIMT are compared with no dose-matched therapy. It is possible that the improvements are due to higher therapy duration compared with traditional therapy instead of the mCIMT protocol itself [15].

Due to the large heterogeneity within the intervention and control groups, and a lack of a dosematched control therapy it is difficult to interpret the results of these earlier studies. Therefore, the aim of this RCT is to investigate whether a two week Modified CIMT-program improves the upper limb capacity more, compared to a dose-matched standard care program in stroke population.

2. Aim of the study

2.1 Research objective

The research protocol aims to answer the following research question: 'Does a two week Modified CIMT program improve the upper limb function in subacute or chronic stroke patients, compared with dose-matched standard care therapy?'

2.2 Hypotheses

The researches hypotheses:

- A mCIMT-program which is focused on the relearning of ADL activities, improves fine and gross motor movement of the impaired upper limb more compared to a standard care program in stroke patients.

- mCIMT has more long term effects on ADL and upper limb function measured by the Fugl-Meyer assessment (FMA) and ARAT, compared to a standard care program in stroke.

3. Method

3.1 Research design

The study is a randomized control trial. The study consists of two groups: an intervention group and a dose matched control group. Patients will be randomly assigned to the intervention group or the control group.

The intervention group receives mCIMT while the control group receives standard care. The patients in both groups will receive therapy five days/week for two consecutive weeks. An independent assessor will evaluate the patients at baseline, post-treatment one and six months after intervention.

3.2 Participants

3.2.1 Patient recruitment

Patients will be recruited in the Jessa rehabilitation center in Herk-de-Stad. Patients will be blindly randomized in two groups of 20 patients. Only inpatients will be included. Patients willing to participate in the study will receive a written consent.

3.2.2 Inclusion criteria

The patients are included when they meet the following criteria: (1) stroke onset more than one month ago, (2) > 18 years, (3) The patient should meet the Taub criteria which means they should be able to: actively extend the wrist on the affected side for a minimum of 10 degrees, and actively extend two digits on the affected side for a minimum of 10 degrees, and actively abduct the thumb on the affected side for a minimum of 10 degrees, and actively abduct the thumb on the affected side for a minimum of 10 degrees, and actively abduct the thumb on the affected side for a minimum of 10 degrees, (4) The patient should be able to walk independently or with the help of a device.

3.2.3 Exclusion criteria

The patients are excluded when they meet one of the following criteria: (1) the patient's general condition is too weak to tolerate the Modified CIMT therapy, (2) the patient's medical condition is unstable, (3) the patient has a peripheral neurologic disorder, rheumatoid arthritis, fractures of the upper limb, or arthrosis that causes upper limb impairment, (4) the patient is unable to understand verbal instructions, (5) the patient has experienced a new stroke in the intervention period.

3.3 Medical ethics

Ethical approval will be asked to the Medicial Ethic Committee of Hasselt University and the local Ethical Committee of JESSA

3.4 Intervention

3.4.1 Therapy content

The intervention group will receive 5 hours of CIMT therapy each day, five days/week for two weeks. The five hours of therapy are divided in five different blocks of one hour of therapy with 30 minutes of rest between the blocks. The therapy is given by a physiotherapist alone or in combination with an occupational therapist. The therapists will focus on a correct posture and movement of the affected arm of the patient. The principles of motor learning will be applied. (These principles will be discussed later). The patient will be encouraged to use the affected hand between the therapeutic sessions as much as possible. The staff in the rehabilitation centre will be informed to stimulate the patients to use the affected arm during the day.

In the first and the third block of therapy patients will work on having a breakfast and dinner. All the goals of the patients are individually determined by a physiotherapist and an occupational therapist. Patients will learn how to use cutlery correctly with the affected side and to lay the table and to clean it up afterwards. The second block consists of specific arm-hand rehabilitation. Individual goals such as how to take money out of their wallets or how to fill a cup with water... will be practised during this hour of therapy.

The fourth block consists of ADL sport exercises. The patients will participate together in different sports for the upper limb such as basketball, badminton... The sports are played in groups of 10 patients. One physical therapist and two occupational therapists will attend the sessions. The different stages of motor learning (cognitive, associative, and autonomous stage) will be used to see if the difficulty level of the sport activity could be increased. When a patient is in the autonomous stage, different rules and materials will be used to make the exercise more difficult.

The last block consists of easy exercises to end the day. These exercises can be chosen by the patients. These various exercises can range from playing a card game with the affected arm to yoga for the upper limb.

The control group will receive a dose matched standard care program. Patients will receive 5 hours of therapy each day, five days/week for 2 weeks. The therapy consists of upper rehabilitation exercises. There is a minimum of 30 minutes rest between each session. The control therapy consists of 4 hours

of standard care and one hour of group therapy. The standard care therapy consists of one hour of active and passive mobilization, two hours of strength training and task-specific training (following the principles of motor learning) and one hour of cardiovascular training. The patients receive one hour of group therapy each day. The group therapy consists of one hour of yoga exercises.

Table 1 gives a detailed description of the therapy given in the control and the intervention group.

Table 1. Therapy content of the intervention and the control group

	Intervention group	Control group
Block 1	Exercise to learn the patient to use	Active and passive mobilisation
	cutlery correctly and to lay the table	
	and to clean it up afterwards	
	30 minutes rest	30 minutes rest
Block 2	Specific arm-hand rehabilitation	Strength training and task-specific training
	based on the principles of motor	according to the principles of motor
	learning strategies	learning strategies
	30 minutes rest	30 minutes rest
Block 3	Exercise to teach the patient to use	Cardiovascular training: cycling, walking,
	cutlery correctly and to lay the table	running, arm cycling
	and to clean it up afterwards	
	30 minutes rest	30 minutes rest
Block 4	ADL sport exercises. The different	Strength training and task-specific training
	stages of motor learning will be	according to the principles of motor
	used.	learning strategies
	The different sports:	
	hockey tennis ping Pong badminton viking cup volleyball basketball handball petanque baseball 30 minutes rest	30 minutes rest

Block 5	Tranquil exercises to end the day	Group yoga therapy
	card games board games memory creative activities: drawing, paining puzzle making	

3.4.3 Training principles

Every training block will take one hour. In all the blocks the principles of motor learning will be used. There are three stages of motor learning. The therapist will adjust his feedback, according to the stage of rehabilitation.

The first stage is the cognitive stage. In this stage, the patient must understand the goal of the task and recognise the movements needed to complete the task. In this stage, the patient will try a variety of strategies to find the best to complete the task. In the cognitive stage the patient will give a large amount of auditory and visual feedback [2]. The therapist will mainly give feedback about the performance. In the early stages of motor learning it is more important to perform the movement correctly instead of the result of the movement [28].

The second stage is the associative stage. In this stage, the patient will use the best strategy found in the previous stage and he will try to refine this strategy. He will learn from his mistakes to make the performance less variable [2]. The amount of feedback given will be reduced in this stage and will be more focused on internal feedback. In this stage, the patient will have to correct himself. They will receive more knowledge of result than performance [28].

The last stage is the autonomous stage. The acquired skill will become more automatic. The patient can perform the task during different regulatory and non-regulatory features [2]. In the autonomous stage it is assumed that the quality of the performance is good, the focus is on the result of the movement [28].

The rehabilitation content consists of part practise and whole practice. Part practice means that the exercise is divided into different parts. For example: the task is to drink from a cup filled with water with the affected arm. (1) Reach to the cup with the affected side, (2) open your hand, (3) take the cup, (4) bring the cup to your mouth, (5) drink, (6) bring the cup back to the table, (7) release the cup.

The task will be divided by the physical therapist. More complex tasks will consist of a larger amount of parts. When the patient is able to perform the different parts separately, the performance will be trained in its entirety, which is called whole practise [28].

Progression to a more difficult task is made when a patient has a Borg score of eight or less during the task. The Borg score will be taken frequently by a physical or an occupational therapist.

When the patient has excessive pain or a Borg score of minimal 18, the task is too difficult. The physio or the occupational therapist will have to make the task more difficult or easier when necessary.

3.5 Outcome measurements

Different baseline characteristics of the patient will be measured before the intervention. Age (years; ratio), gender (man, female; nominal), time after stroke (months; ratio), hemi side (left, right; nominal), dominant hand effected (yes, no; nominal), stroke classification (intracerebral haemorrhage (ICH), lacunar infarct (LACI), Partial anterior circulation infarct (PACI), total anterior circulation infarct (TACI), missing data; nominal), medication use (nominal) and stroke lesion (ischemic or haemorrhage; nominal)) will be measured. The Barthel index (BI) will be used to measure the ADL level of the patients and consists of 10 test items. The total score of the BI is between 0 (complete dependence) and 20 (fully independent) [5]. The Post-Stroke depression rating scale will be used because patients who suffer from a depression could have less motivation. The scale is composed of 10 items. Each test item receives a score between 0 (normal stage) and 5 (severe disorder). The last item in the scale gives a score between -2 (unmotivated, clear prevalence of depression) and + 2 (motivated) during stressing situations [9]. The Modified Ashworth Scale (MAS) will be used to assess the level of the spasticity of shoulder abductors, elbow flexors and wrist flexors [1]. The MAS has a score between 0 (no increased muscle tonus) and 4 (affected limb is fixed in flexion or extension).

3.5.1 Primary outcome

The primary outcomes are measured on the activity level according to the international classification of function, disability, and health (ICF).

Measurement on the ICF-activity level.

The Action research arm test (ARAT) evaluates the hand dexterity. The test consists of 19 items evaluating the grasp, grip, pinch function of the hand and gross movements of the whole upper limb. Every item receives an ordinal score, ranging from 0 (not able to perform the task) till 3 (able to perform the task in time), with a maximal total score of 57. The ARAT is a reliable and valid test in stroke [17, 20].

The Wolf motor function test (WMFT) consists of 17 tasks for the shoulder, the elbow and the hand. The WMFT test has 15 functional tasks and 2 strength tasks. The WMFT can be divided in the WMFT-FAS and the WMFT-TIME. In the WMFT-FAS each test item receives an ordinal score between 0 (unable to perform the task) and 6 (able to perform the task). The WMFT-TIME measures the time the patient needs to perform the task. Each item has a maximal time limit of 120 seconds. The WMFT is a reliable and valid test in stroke patients [16, 27]. The functional independence measure (FIM) is a test that evaluates the patient degree of independence in ADL-function. The test consists of 17 items. 13 Items include motor tasks and 5 items include cognitive tasks. The maximal total score of the FIM is 126. Each item receives an ordinal score between 0 (complete dependence for a task) and 7 (complete independence for a task). The FIM is a valid and reliable test in stroke patients [12].

3.5.2 Secondary outcome

Measurement on the ICF-body function level and measurement for the feasibility of the intervention.

Brunnstrom Fugl-Meyer assessment (BFMA) is a test that evaluates the degree of synergy formation in the upper and lower limb, and balance. The test consists of 55 items. Each test item receives an ordinal score between 0 (unable to perform the movement) and 2 (able to perform the movement). The total score of the BFM test is 114. The BFM is a reliable and valid test in stroke patients. [6, 11, 26] Measurements for the feasibility of the intervention

The VAS-scale is used to determine if the patients in the intervention group experience more pain during or after the intervention compared with the control group. The VAS-scale consists of a 10-point ordinal score (0= no pain and 10 = extreme pain). The VAS scale is measured before and after each block, and after the intervention period.

The Borg Rating of Perceived Exertion (RPE) scale is a subjective questionnaire of the level of exertion. The Borg-scale consists of a 20-point ordinal score (6= no exertion, 20= maximal exertion). The Borg-score is measured before and after each block, and after the intervention period.

3.6 Data analyses

Statistical analyses will be performed with SAS JMP Pro 12.2.0.

The Kruskal–Wallis test will be used for baseline difference.

A mixed model will be used to analyse the effects of the intervention in both groups at the different time points (the subjects are entered as random effect and the time, group and time*?groups fixed effect).

For feasibility, the VAS and the BORG score are measured at the beginning and ending of each block, day and after the intervention period. A between group comparison is made using independent t-tests for each block, day, after the intervention and one month post-intervention.

4. Time planning



5. Reference

Brashear, A., Zafonte, R., Corcoran, M., Galvez-Jimenez, N., Gracies, J., Gordon, M., Mcafee,
 A., Ruffing, K., Thompson, B., Williams, M., Lee, C. and Turkel, C. (2002). Inter- and intrarater
 reliability of the Ashworth Scale and the Disability Assessment Scale in patients with upper-limb
 poststroke spasticity. *Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation*, 83(10), pp.1349-1354.

Cech, D.J., Martin, S. 2012. Functional Movement Development Across the Life Span, 3rd Ed.
 St. Louis: Elsevier Saunders.

3. Corbetta, D., Sirtori, V., Castellini, G., Moja, L. and Gatti, R. (2016). Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy for Upper Extremities in People With Stroke. *Stroke*, 47(8), pp.e205-e206.

4. [The reduction of stroke risk, risk of myocardial infarction and death by healthy diet and physical activity]. Droste DW et al. Bull Soc Sci Med Grand Duche Luxemb. (2013)

5. Duffy, L., Gajree, S., Langhorne, P., Stott, D. and Quinn, T. (2013). Reliability (Inter-rater Agreement) of the Barthel Index for Assessment of Stroke Survivors: Systematic Review and Metaanalysis. *Stroke*, 44(2), pp.462-468.

6. Duncan, P., Propst, M. and Nelson, S. (1983). Reliability of the Fugl-Meyer Assessment of Sensorimotor Recovery Following Cerebrovascular Accident. *Physical Therapy*, 63(10), pp.1606-1610.

7. Etoom, M., Hawamdeh, M., Hawamdeh, Z., Alwardat, M., Giordani, L., Bacciu, S., Scarpini, C. and Foti, C. (2016). Constraint-induced movement therapy as a rehabilitation intervention for upper extremity in stroke patients. *International Journal of Rehabilitation Research*, 39(3), pp.197-210.

8. Evers, S., Engel, G. and Ament, A. (1997). Cost of Stroke in the Netherlands From a Societal Perspective. *Stroke*, 28(7), pp.1375-1381.

9. Gainotti, G., Azzoni, A., Razzano, C., Lanzillotta, M., Marra, C. and Gasparini, F. (1997). The Post-Stroke depression rating scale: A test specifically devised to investigate affective disorders of stroke patients. *Journal of Clinical and Experimental Neuropsychology*, 19(3), pp.340-356.

10. Harris, J. and Eng, J. (2009). Strength Training Improves Upper-Limb Function in Individuals With Stroke: A Meta-Analysis. *Stroke*, 41(1), pp.136-140.

11. Hsueh, I., Wang, C., Sheu, C. and Hsieh, C. (2003). Comparison of Psychometric Properties of Three Mobility Measures for Patients With Stroke. *Stroke*, 34(7), pp.1741-1745.

12. Kidd, D., Stewart, G., Baldry, J., Johnson, J., Rossiter, D., Petruckevitch, A. and Thompson, A. (1995). The Functional Independence Measure: A comparative validity and reliability study. *Disability and Rehabilitation*, 17(1), pp.10-14

13. Kleinit, T., Kimber, T., and Thompson, P (2009). Stroke prevention and stroke thrombolysis: quantifying the potential benefits of best practice therapies. *Med J Aust*, 190 (12), pp. 678-682.

14. Krishnamurthi, R., Feigin, V., Forouzanfar, M., Mensah, G., Connor, M., Bennett, D., Moran, A., Sacco, R., Anderson, L., Truelsen, T., O'Donnell, M., Venketasubramanian, N., Barker-Collo, S., Lawes, C., Wang, W., Shinohara, Y., Witt, E., Ezzati, M., Naghavi, M. and Murray, C. (2013). Global

and regional burden of first-ever ischaemic and haemorrhagic stroke during 1990–2010: findings from the Global Burden of Disease Study 2010. *The Lancet Global Health*, 1(5), pp.e259-e281.

15. Kwakkel, G., Rietberg, M. and van Wegen, E. (2007). Constraint-induced movement therapy improves upper extremity motor function after stroke. *Australian Journal of Physiotherapy*, 53(2), p.132.

16. Lang, C., Lohse, K. and Birkenmeier, R. (2015). Dose and timing in neurorehabilitation. *Current Opinion in Neurology*, 28(6), pp.549-555.

17. Lin, K. C., Chuang, L. L., Wu, C. Y., Hsieh, Y. W., & Chang, W. Y. (2010). Responsiveness and validity of

three dexterous function measures in stroke rehabilitation. Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development, 47(6), 563-571. doi:10.1682/jrrd.2009.09.0155

18. McIntyre, A., Viana, R., Janzen, S., Mehta, S., Pereira, S. and Teasell, R. (2012). Systematic Review and

Meta-Analysis of Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy in the Hemiparetic Upper Extremity More Than Six Months Post Stroke. *Topics in Stroke Rehabilitation*, 19(6), pp.499-513.

19. Mensah, G., Norrving, B. and Feigin, V. (2015). The Global Burden of

Stroke. Neuroepidemiology, 45(3), pp.143-145.

20. Nordin, A., Murphy, M. A., & Danielsson, A. (2014). INTRA-RATER AND INTER-RATER RELIABILITY AT THE

ITEM LEVEL OF THE ACTION RESEARCH ARM TEST FOR PATIENTS WITH STROKE. Journal of Rehabilitation Medicine, 46(8), 738-745. doi:10.2340/16501977-1831

21. Morris, D., Taub, E., Mark, v., (2006). Constraint induced movement therapy: characterizing the intervention. *Eura medicophys*, 42(3), 257-268.

22. Page, S., Levine, P. and Leonard, A. (2007). Article 10: Modified Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy in Chronic Stroke: Results of a Single-Blinded, Randomized, Controlled Trial. *Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation*, 88(10), p.e3.

23. Page, S., Levine, P., Leonard, A., Szaflarski, J. and Kissela, B. (2008). Modified Constraint-Induced Therapy in Chronic Stroke: Results of a Single-Blinded Randomized Controlled Trial. *Physical Therapy*, 88(3), pp.333-340.

24. Peurala, S., Kantanen, M., Sjogren, T., Paltamaa, J., Karhula, M. and Heinonen, A. (2011). Effectiveness of constraint-induced movement therapy on activity and participation after stroke: a systematic review and meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. *Clinical Rehabilitation*, 26(3), pp.209-223.

25. Pollock, A., Baer, G., Campbell, P., Choo, P., Forster, A., Morris, J., Pomeroy, V. and Langhorne, P. (2014). Physical Rehabilitation Approaches for the Recovery of Function and Mobility After Stroke. *Stroke*, 45(10), pp.e202-e202.

26. Sanford, J., Moreland, J., Swanson, L., Stratford, P. and Gowland, C. (1993). Reliability of the Fugl-Meyer Assessment for Testing Motor Performance in Patients Following Stroke. *Physical Therapy*, 73(7), pp.447-454.

27. Shi, Y., Tian, J., Yang, K. and Zhao, Y. (2011). Modified Constraint-Induced Movement Therapy Versus Traditional Rehabilitation in Patients With Upper-Extremity Dysfunction After Stroke: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. *Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation*, 92(6), pp.972-982.

28. Shumway-Cook, A. & Woollacott, M. 2012. Motor Control, Translating Research into Clinical Practice, 4th ed. Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams & Wilkins.

29. Truelsen, T., Piechowski-Jozwiak, B., Bonita, R., Mathers, C., Bogousslavsky, J. and Boysen, G. (2006). Stroke incidence and prevalence in Europe: a review of available data. *European Journal of Neurology*, 13(6), pp.581-598.

30. Veerbeek, J., van Wegen, E., van Peppen, R., van der Wees, P., Hendriks, E., Rietberg, M. and Kwakkel, G. (2014). What Is the Evidence for Physical Therapy Poststroke? A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. *PLoS ONE*, 9(2), p.e87987.

31. Wolf, S., Catlin, P., Ellis, M., Archer, A., Morgan, B. and Piacentino, A. (2001). Assessing Wolf Motor Function Test as Outcome Measure for Research in Patients After Stroke. *Stroke*, 32(7), pp.1635-1639.

Whitall, J., Savin, D., Harris-Love, M. and Waller, S. (2006). Psychometric Properties of a
Modified Wolf Motor Function Test for People With Mild and Moderate Upper-ExtremityWolf, S., Catlin,
P., Ellis, M., Archer, A., Morgan, B. and Piacentino, A. (2001). Assessing Wolf Motor Function Test as
Outcome Measure for Research in Patients After Stroke. *Stroke*, 32(7), pp.1635-1639.

33. Cramer S. C., Nelles G., Benson R. R., Kaplan J. D., Parker R. A., Kwong K. K., et
al.(1997). A functional mri study of subjects recovered from hemiparetic stroke. Stroke 28, 2518–2527.
10.1161/01.STR.28.12.2518

34. Raghavan P. Upper Limb Motor Impairment After Stroke. Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Clinics of North America. 26: 599-610. PMID 26522900 DOI: 10.1016/j.pmr.2015.06.008

APPENDIX RESEARCH PROTOCOL

Appendix 1: Voortgangsformulier Wetenschappelijke Stage Deel 1
Universiteit hasselt

www.uhasselt.be/glw

postadres: Universiteit Hasselt | Martelarenlaan 42 | BE-3500 Hasselt bezoekadres: Universiteit Hasselt | Agoralaan, gebouw D | BE-3590 Diepenbeek T +32(0)11 26 85 36 | F +32(0)11 26 85 99 | E-mail: glw@uhasselt.be

VOORTGANGSFORMULIER WETENSCHAPPELIJKE STAGE DEEL 1

DATUM	INHOUD OVERLEG	HANDTEKENINGEN
24110	Responsing orderwerp, deadlines	Promotor:
	And bound	Copromotor:
	gound canne	Student(e):
		Student(e):
28110	Bespreten ian onderworksmaag	Promotor: 🖉
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e): B
3/01	Bespreking Kakskrategre	Promotor: 🖉
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
28102	Respecting 'auglity assessment'	Promotor:
	scop were ig quitte o	Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
28/04	Bespreking feedback	Promotor:
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
18105	Respreting protocol in Hert-De-Stad	Promotor:
	Grophing 1	Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
03/07	Bespreking feedback	Promotor:
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
24107	Bespreking feedback	Promotor:
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
		Promotor:
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):
		Promotor:
		Copromotor:
		Student(e):
		Student(e):

Auteursrechtelijke overeenkomst

Ik/wij verlenen het wereldwijde auteursrecht voor de ingediende eindverhandeling: The dosage dependent effects of upper limb rehabilitation in chronic neurological patients

Richting: master in de revalidatiewetenschappen en de kinesitherapie-revalidatiewetenschappen en kinesitherapie bij neurologische aandoeningen laar: 2017

in alle mogelijke mediaformaten, - bestaande en in de toekomst te ontwikkelen - , aan de Universiteit Hasselt.

Niet tegenstaand deze toekenning van het auteursrecht aan de Universiteit Hasselt behoud ik als auteur het recht om de eindverhandeling, - in zijn geheel of gedeeltelijk -, vrij te reproduceren, (her)publiceren of distribueren zonder de toelating te moeten verkrijgen van de Universiteit Hasselt.

Ik bevestig dat de eindverhandeling mijn origineel werk is, en dat ik het recht heb om de rechten te verlenen die in deze overeenkomst worden beschreven. Ik verklaar tevens dat de eindverhandeling, naar mijn weten, het auteursrecht van anderen niet overtreedt.

Ik verklaar tevens dat ik voor het materiaal in de eindverhandeling dat beschermd wordt door het auteursrecht, de nodige toelatingen heb verkregen zodat ik deze ook aan de Universiteit Hasselt kan overdragen en dat dit duidelijk in de tekst en inhoud van de eindverhandeling werd genotificeerd.

Universiteit Hasselt zal mij als auteur(s) van de eindverhandeling identificeren en zal geen wijzigingen aanbrengen aan de eindverhandeling, uitgezonderd deze toegelaten door deze overeenkomst.

Voor akkoord,

Poelmans, Bram

Petré, Lore